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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Independent auditors’ report

To the Shareholder and Management Board of JSC Insurance company Aldagi

We have audited the accompanying special purpose consolidated financial statements of
JSC Insurance company Aldagi and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2015 and consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of  cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
The financial statements have been prepared by management of the Group in accordance
with the basis of preparation described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with the basis of preparation described in Note 2 to the financial statements, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Our audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the special purpose consolidated financial statements of
JSC Insurance company Aldagi for the year ended 31 December, 2015 are prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 2 to the
financial statements.

Basis of accounting and restriction on use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements,
which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist the
Group to comply with the financial reporting provisions of the Insurance State Supervision
Service of Georgia (“the ISSSG”). As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable
for another purpose. Our auditors’ report is intended solely for the Group and the ISSSG and
should not be used by parties other than the Group or the ISSSG.

1 April 2016



JSC Insurance Company Aldagi Group  Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
Special Purpose Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

As at 31 December 
(Thousands of Georgian lari) 
 
 

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements.  1 

 
Notes 2015   2014 

Assets 
    Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,735 

 
2,688 

Bank Deposits 7 17,983 
 

12,655 
Available-for-sale financial assets 8 2,583 

 
– 

Insurance and reinsurance receivables 9 17,878 
 

17,828 
Loan Issued 10 5,235 

 
5,216 

Reinsurance assets 19 13,826 
 

11,290 
Current income tax assets 

 
299 

 
82 

Deferred income tax assets 11 1,445 
 

701 
Deferred acquisition costs 12 1,915 

 
1,418 

Property and equipment 13 8,548 
 

8,712 
Goodwill and other intangible assets 14 14,248 

 
13,675 

Pension Fund Assets 15 13,706 
 

11,289 
Other assets 17 2,963 

 
2,654 

Total assets 
 

103,364 
 

88,208 

  

    Equity 
    Share capital 18 1,889 

 
1,600 

Additional paid-in capital 
 

6,987 
 

2,883 
Other reserves 

 
358 

 
85 

Retained earnings 
 

23,808 
 

20,220 

Total equity 
 

33,042 
 

24,788 

  

    Liabilities 
    Insurance contract liabilities 19 37,964 

 
27,986 

Derivative financial liabilities 20 – 
 

1,768 
Other insurance liabilities 21 9,477 

 
15,349 

Current income tax liabilities 
 

663 
 

527 
Borrowings 

 
– 

 
2,930 

Pension Fund Liability 15 13,706 
 

11,289 
Other liabilities 22 8,512 

 
3,571 

Total liabilities 
 

70,322 
 

63,420 

Total equity and liabilities 
 

103,364 
 

88,208 

 
 
Signed and authorized for release on behalf of the Management Board of JSC Insurance Company Aldagi: 
 
 
 
 
 
Giorgi Baratashvili  
 
 
 
 
 
Lasha Khakhutaishvili  
 
 
1 April 2016 
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Special Purpose Consolidated Income Statement  
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and period from 1 august 2014, the split date,  
to 31 December 2014 
(Thousands of Georgian lari) 
 
 

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements.  2 

 
Notes 2015 

 Five months 
ended  

31 December 2014 

   

 

 Gross earned premiums on insurance contracts 
 

67,831  22,856 
Reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums on insurance 

contracts 
 

(21,289)  (8,530) 

Net insurance revenue 24 46,542  14,326 

  

  

 

 Interest Income 25 2,221  504 
Other operating income  26 1,624  747 

Other revenue 
 

3,845  1,251 

Total revenue 
 

50,387  15,577 

  

  

 

 Gross insurance benefits and claims paid 
 

(22,281)  (6,850) 
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance benefits and claims paid 

 
4,969  1,234 

Gross change in insurance contracts liabilities 
 

(5,016)  1,865 
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance contracts 

liabilities 
 

2,772  (1,284) 

Net insurance claims 27 (19,556)  (5,035) 

  

  

 

 Acquisition costs, net of reinsurance 28 (5,853)  (1,636) 
Salaries and other employee benefits 29 (7,256)  (2,739) 
General and administrative expenses 30 (3,300)  (1,724) 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 13 (833)  (264) 
Impairment charge 16 (919)  (272) 
Interest Expense 25 (71)  (155) 
Foreign exchange loses 

 
(7,618)  (2,271) 

Other operating expenses  31 (727)  (57) 

Other expenses 
 

(26,577)  (9,118) 

Total claims and expenses 
 

(46,133)  (14,153) 

   

 

 Income before tax 
 

4,254  1,424 
Income tax expense 11 (666)  (305) 

Net Income 
 

3,588  1,119 
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Special Purpose Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and period from 1 august 2014, the split date,  
to 31 December 2014 
(Thousands of Georgian lari) 
 
 

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements.  3 

 
Notes 2015 

 Five months 
ended  

31 December 2014 

Net Income for the year 
 

3,588  1,119 

  

  

 

 Other comprehensive income 
  

 

 Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods 

 
–  – 

   

 

 Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods (net of tax):  

  
 

 - Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 13 273  
 Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to 

profit or loss in subsequent periods 
 

273  – 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 
 

273  – 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 
 

3,861  1,119 
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Special Purpose Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and five months ended 31 December 2014 
(Thousands of Georgian lari) 
 
 

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements.  4 

 

Share 
Capital   

Additional 
paid-in 
capital   

Other 
reserves   

Retained 
Earnings   

Total 
Equity 

  

         1 August 2014 1,600 
 

2,529 
 

85 
 

19,101 
 

23,315 
 

Net profit and total 
comprehensive income – 

 
– 

 
– 

 
1,119 

 
1,119 

Share based transactions  
(Note 18) – 

 
354 

 
– 

 
– 

 
354 

31 December 2014 1,600 
 

2,883 
 

85 
 

20,220 
 

24,788 

Net income for the period –  –  –  3,588  3,588 
Other comprehensive income –  –  273  –  273 

Total comprehensive income – 
 

– 
 

273 
 

3,588 
 

3,861 

Equity contribution (Note 5) – 
 

243 
 

– 
 

– 
 

243 
Issue of Share Capital (Note 18) 289 

 
3,861 

 
– 

 
– 

 
4,150 

31 December 2015 1,889 
 

6,987 
 

358 
 

23,808 
 

33,042 
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Special Purpose Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and five months ended 31 December 2014 
(Thousands of Georgian lari) 
 
 

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 57 are an integral part of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements.  5 

 
Notes 2015 

 Five months 
ended 2014 

Cash flows from operating activities 
  

 

 Insurance premium received 
 

59,101  21,354 
Reinsurance premium paid 

 
(13,283)  (2,532) 

Insurance benefits and claims paid 
 

(21,702)  (6,912) 
Reinsurance claims received 

 
3,856  1,722 

Acquisition costs paid 
 

(4,550)  (1,623) 
Salaries and benefits paid  

 
(7,861)  (2,186) 

Interest received 
 

1,338  133 
Interest paid 

 
(113)  (156) 

Operating taxes paid 
 

(132)  (64) 
Other operating income received 

 
1,560  845 

Other operating expenses paid 
 

(4,256)  (1,707) 

Net cash flows from operating activities before income tax 
 

13,958  8,874 

Income tax paid 
 

(1,545)  – 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
 

12,413  8,874 

  

  

 

 Cash flows from (used in) investing activities 
  

 

 Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 5 (3,893)  – 
Purchase of premises and equipment 

 
(335)  (611) 

Purchase of intangible assets 
 

(578)  (2) 
Loan Issued 

 
(4,064)  (4,234) 

Proceeds from repayment of loan issued 
 

5,117  1,000 
Settlement of forward agreements 

 
(7,165)  – 

Proceeds from (placement of) bank deposits 
 

46  (4,228) 
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets 

 
(2,399)  – 

Net cash flows from used in investing activities 
 

(13,271)  (8,075) 

  

  

 

 Cash flows from financing activities 
  

 

 Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 18 4,150  – 
Proceeds from borrowings 

 
2,000  1,000 

Repayment of borrowings 
 

(5,182)  (1,895) 

Net cash flows from (used in)financing activities 
 

968  (895) 

  

  

 

 Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash 
equivalents 

 
(63)  8 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
 

47  (88) 

Cash and cash equivalents, 1 January / 1 August 6 2,688  2,776 

Cash and cash equivalents, 31 December 6 2,735  2,688 
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(Thousands of Georgian lari unless otherwise stated) 
 
 

6 

1. Principal Activities 
 
JSC Insurance Company Aldagi was established on 11 August 1998 under the laws of Georgia. Together 
with its subsidiaries, up until 1 August 2014, it offered wide range of health insurance products, property and 
casualty products, and provided medical services to inpatient and outpatient customers through a network of 
hospitals and clinics throughout the whole Georgian territory. In 2014 JSC Insurance Company Aldagi (“pre-
split Aldagi”) and its subsidiaries (“pre-split Aldagi Group”) began a corporate reorganization in order to 
separate healthcare and health insurance business from property and casualty insurance business.  
 
As a result of the reorganization, on 1 August 2014, pre-split Aldagi’s property and casualty business was 
separated from health insurance business and transferred to a newly established legal entity retaining the 
same brand name, JSC Insurance Company Aldagi (the “Company”). Period up until 1 August 2014 is 
further referred to as “the pre-split period”, the remaining part of 2014 – as “the post-split period”. 
 
The Company possesses two types of insurance licences issued by the Insurance Bureau and Supervisory 
Board of Georgia for life and non-life insurance products, as well as a licence to act as a pension fund. The 
Company offers various life and non-life insurance services and insurance products relating to property, 
liability, and others. The main office of the Company is located in Tbilisi and it has seven additional service 
centres in Tbilisi, Batumi, Poti, Kutaisi, Zugdidi, Telavi and Gori. The Company’s legal address is 3, Pushkin 
Street, 0105 Tbilisi, Georgia. 
 
The Company is the parent of the following enterprises incorporated in Georgia (together representing the 
“Aldagi Group” or the “Group”). 

 
 Ownership/voting  

Subsidiary 
31 December 

2015 
 31 December 

2014 
 Date of 

incorporation 
 

Industry 
 Date of 

acquisition 

Aliance, LLC 100%  100% 
 1 March 

 2000 
 

Other 
 

30 April 2012 

Green Way, LLC 100%  100% 
 27 December 

2010 
 

Services 
 

30 April 2012 

Premium Residence, LLC 100%  100% 
 09 July  

2010 
 Tourism & 

Hospitality 
 

30 April 2012 

JSC Insurance Company Tao 100%  0% 
 22 August 

2007 
 

Insurance 
 

1 May 2015 

 
As at 31 December 2015 the Group was 100% owned by JSC BG Financial (2014: 85% owned by JSC Bank 
of Georgia and 15% owned by JSC Galt and Taggart Holding). As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the 
Group’s ultimate parent is BGEO Group plc (formerly known as Bank of Georgia Holdings plc).  
 
 

2. Basis of Preparation 
 
General 
 
The special purpose consolidated financial statements of the Group for year ended 31 December 2015 have 
been prepared in accordance with requirements of regulator – Insurance State Supervision Service of 
Georgia (ISSSG). Group’s accounting policies applied in preparation of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements described in Note 3 are developed based on International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), except for the cases 
when the Group applies specific accounting policies to comply with the requirements of the ISSSG. 
Management of the Group believes this is an appropriate and robust accounting framework which has been 
consistently applied. 
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2. Basis of Preparation (continued) 
 
General (continued) 
 
Difference between Group’s accounting policies applied in preparation of these special purpose consolidated 
financial statements and IFRS is the absence of full year comparative consolidated income statement, 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and 
consolidated statements of cash flows, and respective explanatory notes. Instead, these comparative 
consolidated statements and respective notes cover the post-split period only – for five month period starting 
from 1 August 2014 to 31 December 2014. Additional financial information on Group composition that is not 
required by IFRS is disclosed in Note 35 in accordance with requirements of the ISSSG. The Group expects 
to present consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS for the year ending 
31 December 2016. 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as 
disclosed in the accounting policies below. These consolidated financial statements are presented in 
thousands of Georgian lari (“GEL”), unless otherwise indicated. GEL is the functional currency of the 
Company and its subsidiaries as the majority of their transactions are denominated, or funded in Georgian 
lari. Transactions in other currencies are treated as transactions in foreign currencies. The Group presents 
its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. 
 
 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Changes in accounting policies 
 
The Group has adopted a number of amended IFRS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2015 (including amendments to IAS 19 and amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, 
IFRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 24, IAS 40 and IFRS 1 issued in course of Annual Improvement cycles 2010-2012 and 
2011-2013), none of which had any impact on the Group. 
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
The special purpose consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and 
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

► Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities 
of the investee); 

► Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

► The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 
 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group 
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

► The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee; 

► Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; 

► The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. 
 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. 
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included 
in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group 
ceases to control the subsidiary.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Basis of consolidation (continued) 
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests 
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group 
are eliminated in full on consolidation.  
 

Business combinations, including common control business combinations, are accounted for using the 
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred 
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For 
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets and other 
components of non-controlling interests at their acquisition date fair values. Acquisition-related costs are 
expensed as incurred and included in other operating expenses. When the Group acquires a business, it 
assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in 
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 
 
Goodwill 
 
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and 
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the 
aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the 
assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts 
to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net 
assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss (for 
common control business combinations the gain is recognised as equity contribution). 
 
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 
 
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is 
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the 
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is 
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit 
retained. 
 
Product classification 
 
Insurance contracts 
 
Insurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the inception of the contract, 
or those where at the inception of the contract there is a scenario with commercial substance where the level 
of insurance risk may be significant. The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of 
an insured event and the magnitude of its potential effect. 
 
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the 
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights 
and obligations are extinguished or expire.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 
 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables are recognised based upon insurance policy terms and measured at 
cost. The carrying value of insurance and reinsurance receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with any impairment loss 
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
 
Reinsurance receivables primarily include balances due from both insurance and reinsurance companies for 
ceded insurance liabilities. Premiums on reinsurance assumed are recognised as revenue in the same 
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product 
classification of the reinsured business. Amounts due to reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with 
the associated reinsured policies and in accordance with the reinsurance contract. Premiums ceded and 
claims reimbursed are presented on a gross basis. 
 
An impairment review is performed on all reinsurance assets when an indication of impairment occurs. 
Reinsurance receivables are impaired only if there is objective evidence that the Group may not receive all 
amounts due to it under the terms of the contract and that this can be measured reliably. 
 
Insurance contract liabilities 
 
Insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, the provision for unearned premium 
and the provision for premium deficiency. General business contract liabilities are based on the estimated 
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, together with 
related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. The 
liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques, 
based on empirical data and current assumptions. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. 
No provision for equalisation or catastrophe reserves is recognised. The liabilities are derecognised when 
the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled. 
 
The provision is recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to 
account as premium income over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service 
provided under the contract. At each reporting date the carrying amount of unearned premium is calculated 
on active policies based on the insurance period and time until the expiry date of each insurance policy. The 
Group reviews its unexpired risk based on historical performance of separate business lines to determine 
overall change in expected claims. The differences between the unearned premium reserves, loss provisions 
and as well as the expected claims are recognised in the consolidated income statement by setting up a 
provision for premium deficiency. 
 
Reinsurance assets 
 
The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance 
assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are 
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the 
reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract. 
  
An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of 
impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the 
Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on the 
amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is 
recorded in the consolidated income statement. The reinsurers’ share of each unexpired risk provision is 
recognised on the same basis. Reinsurance assets are derecognised when the contractual rights are 
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party. 
 
Deferred acquisition costs 
 
Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”) are capitalized and amortized on a straight line basis over the life of the 
contract. All other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. Acquisition costs deferred 
consist of commissions to sales agents and brokerage companies assisting in policy issuance. 
  



JSC Insurance Company Aldagi Group    Notes to 2015 Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements 

(Thousands of Georgian lari unless otherwise stated) 
 
 

10 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, current accounts and bank deposits that mature within 
three months from the date of origination and are free from contractual encumbrances. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets in the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as 
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case 
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group 
determines the classification of its financial assets upon initial recognition.  
 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the 
consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as 
through the amortization process. 
 
Regress and other receivables are recognised at their original invoiced value. Where the time value of 
money is material, receivables are carried at amortized cost.  
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-
for-sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised in other 
comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be 
impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to the consolidated income statement. However, interest calculated using the effective interest 
method is recognised in the consolidated income statement. 
 
Offsetting 
 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of 
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and 
expense will not be offset in the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard 
or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group. 
 
Allowances for impairment of loans and receivables 
 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.  
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at 
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The 
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.  
 
Assets carried at amortized cost 
 
The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset 
reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, 
whether or not the foreclosure is probable.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Allowances for impairment of loans and receivables (continued) 
 
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets 
that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar 
credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets 
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be 
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income 
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the 
reversal date. 
 
When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment. Such assets are 
written off after all necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been 
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the charge for impairment of 
financial assets in the consolidated income statement. 
 
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 
 
Financial assets 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 
is derecognised where: 

► the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

► the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the right to 
receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material 
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 

► the Group either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

 
Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset 
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that 
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. 
 
Fair value measurement 
 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as derivatives and certain non-financial assets such as 
office buildings, at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair values of financial instruments 
measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 33. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Fair value measurement (continued) 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset 
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a 
non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 
its highest and best use.  
 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use 
of unobservable inputs significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

► Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

► Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

► Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) 
at the end of each reporting period. 
 
Property and equipment 
 
Property and equipment except for office buildings are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost 
is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. 
 
The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognised in 
the consolidated income statement as an expense. 
 
Following initial recognition at cost, buildings are carried at a revalued amount, which is the fair value at the 
date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses. Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued 
asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount. 
 
Any revaluation surplus is credited to the asset revaluation reserve included in consolidated income 
statement, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in the consolidated income statement, in which case the increase is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the consolidated 
income statement, except that a deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus on the same asset is directly 
offset against the surplus in the asset revaluation reserve. 
 
Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation 
reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings. 
 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

 Years 

Office buildings 50-100 
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 
Computers and equipment 5-10 
Motor vehicles 5 
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Property and equipment (continued) 

 
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
financial year-end. 
 
Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses, 
unless they qualify for capitalization. 
 
An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognising of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the consolidated income statement in the year the asset is derecognised. 
 
Assets under construction comprises costs directly related to construction of property, plant and equipment 
including an appropriate allocation of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads that have been 
incurred during the construction. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as similar property assets, 
commences when the assets are available for use. 
 
Pension fund assets and liabilities 
 
The Group provides management and employees of the Group, management and employees of the former 
parent of the Group (now entity under common control) – JSC Bank of Georgia, as well as the Group non-
related broad client base with private pension plans. These are defined contribution pension plans covering 
substantially all full-time employees of the Group and JSC Bank of Georgia. The Group collects contributions 
from its employees as well as employees of JSC Bank of Georgia and other clients. When a client reaches 
the pension age, aggregated contributions, plus any income earned on the employee’s behalf are paid to the 
employee according to the schedule agreed with the client. Aggregated amounts are distributed during the 
period when the employee will receive accumulated contributions. In case of leaving the occupied position, 
the client is entitled to accumulated contributions in form of a lump sum. 
 
The Group holds the licence to act as a pension fund. Under this licence the Group is authorized to receive 
pension contribution from the population of Georgia, with obligation to repay contributions plus earnings.  
 
Assets and liabilities of the Fund are accounted for within Pension Fund Assets and Pension Fund Liabilities. 
Pension Fund Assets and Pension Fund liabilities are measured under IAS 39 at amortized cost or fair value, 
depending on classification made at initial recognition. The Group does not guarantee any investment 
income to the participants of the investment plan. 
 
Borrowings 
 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.  
 
After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process.  
 
A borrowing is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.  
 
Taxation 
 
The current income tax expense is calculated in accordance with the regulations in force in Georgia. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability 
method. Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred 
income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit or loss.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Taxation (continued) 
 
A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.  
 
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates 
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and 
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 
Georgia also has various operating taxes that are assessed on the Group’s activities. These taxes are 
included as a component of other operating expenses.  
 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets include computer software and licenses.  
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible 
assets acquired in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated 
impairment losses.  
 
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite 
lives are amortized over the useful economic lives of 4 to 10 years and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Amortization periods and methods for 
intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. 
 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but tested for impairment annually either 
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is 
reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.  
 
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recorded as an expense as incurred. 
Software development costs (relating to the design and testing of new or substantially improved software) 
are recognised as intangible assets only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of 
completing the software so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to 
use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to 
complete and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Other software 
development costs are recognised as an expense as incurred. 
 
Provisions and contingent liabilities 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. 
 
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is more probable than 
not. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed 
unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the 
consolidated statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
 
Share-based payment transactions 
 
Senior executives of the Group receive share-based remuneration settled in equity instruments of the 
Group’s ultimate parent, BGEO Group plc. Grants are made by both the BGEO Group plc and the Group. 
Respective grants made by BGEO Group plc are treated as equity settled transactions, while those made by 
the Group itself – as cash-settled transactions.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Share-based payment transactions (continued) 
 
Equity-settled transactions  
 
The cost of equity settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date 
on which they are granted.  
 
The cost of equity settled transactions is recognised together with the corresponding increase in additional 
paid in capital, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the 
date when the relevant employee is fully entitled to the award (“the vesting date”). The cumulative expense 
recognised for equity settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that 
will ultimately vest.  
 
Cash-settled transactions  
 
The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date based on market. 
This fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. 
The liability is remeasured to fair value at each reporting date up to, and including the settlement date, with 
changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense.  
 
Share capital 
 
Share capital 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par 
value of shares issued is recognised as additional paid-in capital. 
 
Income and expense recognition 
 
Premium written 
 
Insurance premiums written are recognised on policy inception and earned on a pro rata basis over the term 
of the related policy coverage. Insurance premiums written reflect business incepted during the year, are 
shown before deduction of commission and exclude any sales-based taxes or duties. Unearned premiums 
are those proportions of the premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. 
Unearned premiums are computed principally on monthly pro rata basis.  
 
Premiums ceded 
 
Premiums payable in respect of reinsurance ceded are recognised in the period in which the reinsurance 
contract is entered into and include estimates where the amounts are not determined at the reporting date. 
Premiums are expensed over the period of the reinsurance contract, calculated principally on a daily pro rata 
basis. 
 
Provision for unearned premiums 
 
The proportion of written premiums attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as unearned premium. The 
change in the provision for unearned premium is taken to the consolidated income statement in the order 
that revenue is recognised over the period of risk or, for annuities, the amount of expected future benefit 
payments. 
 
Benefits and claims 
 
Life insurance business claims reflect the cost of all claims incurred during the year, including claims 
handling costs. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities 
and annuity payments are recorded when due. Benefits recorded are then accrued to the liability. 
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Income and expense recognition (continued) 
 
General insurance claims incurred include all claim losses occurring during the year, whether reported or 
not, including the related handling costs and reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries and any 
adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. 
 
Claims handling costs include internal and external costs incurred in connection with the negotiation and 
settlement of claims. Internal costs include all direct expenses of the claims department and any part of the 
general administrative costs directly attributable to the claims function. 
 
Foreign currency translation 
 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Georgian lari, which is the Company’s and its 
subsidiaries functional and presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in 
the functional currency, converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Georgian lari at official exchange 
rates declared by the National Bank of Georgia (“NBG”) and effective as of the reporting date. Gains and 
losses resulting from the translation of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the consolidated 
income statement as gains less losses from foreign currencies – translation differences. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as 
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 
 
Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a transaction in a foreign currency and the 
NBG exchange rate on the date of the transaction are included in gains less losses from dealing in foreign 
currencies. The official NBG exchange rates at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 were 2.3949 and 
1.8636 Georgian lari to 1 US dollar, respectively. 
 
Derivative financial instruments 
 
As part of its risk management strategy, the Group uses foreign exchange contracts to manage exposures 
resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Such financial instruments are initially recognised 
and are subsequently measured at fair value. The fair values are estimated based on pricing models that 
take into account the current market and contractual prices of the underlying instruments and other factors. 
Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is negative. Gains 
and losses resulting from these instruments are included in the consolidated income statement in foreign 
exchange losses. 
 
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective  
 
The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the 
Company’s financial statements which may have impact on the Company’s financial statements are 
disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards when they become effective. Management 
does not expect application of other new standards and interpretations to have significant impact on financial 
statements.  
 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
 
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings 
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, 
impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but 
providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally 
applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. The adoption of IFRS 9 might have an effect on the 
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but no impact on the classification and 
measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. 
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued) 
 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 
The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a 
full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018, when the IASB finalises their amendments to defer the effective date of IFRS 15 
by one year. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15. 
 
IFRS 16 Leases 
 
In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases with an effective date of annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most leases within the scope of the standard 
in a manner similar to the way in which finance leases are currently accounted for under IAS 17 Leases. 
Lessees will recognise a ‘right of use’ asset and a corresponding financial liability on the balance sheet. The 
asset will be amortised over the length of the lease and the financial liability measured at amortised cost. 
Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as in IAS 17. The Group is currently assessing the impact 
of IFRS 16 on its financial statements 
 
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 
 
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic 
benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic 
benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used 
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise 
intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to 
the Company given that the Company has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current 
assets. 
 
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle 
 
These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and are not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company. They include: 
 
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
 
Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either through sale or distribution to owners. The 
amendment clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other would not be considered 
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of 
the application of the requirements in IFRS 5. This amendment must be applied prospectively. 
 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
 
(i) Servicing contracts 
 
The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in 
a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and the arrangement against the guidance for 
continuing involvement in IFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The assessment 
of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement must be done retrospectively. However, the 
required disclosures would not need to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in 
which the entity first applies the amendments. 

 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
 
The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the 
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. 
When there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must 
be used. This amendment must be applied prospectively.  
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle (continued) 
 
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative 
 
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify, rather than significantly change, 
existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments clarify: 

► The materiality requirements in IAS 1. 

► That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial 
position may be disaggregated. 

► That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements. 

► That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be 
presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will not be 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 

 
Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented in 
the statement of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI. These amendments are 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted.  
 
 

4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions 
 

Estimation uncertainty 
 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 
 

Claims liability arising from insurance contracts 
 

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under life and general insurance contracts is 
the Group’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be 
considered in the estimation of the liability that the Group will ultimately pay for those claims.  
 

Estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting date and 
for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the reporting date. It can take 
a significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty. General 
insurance claims provisions are not discounted for the time value of money. 
 

The ultimate cost of IBNR is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, 
such as Chain Ladder and Stochastic Claims Reserving methods. Probabilistic approach – Stochastic model 
is used for estimating IBNR in Casco Insurance through Monte Carlo Simulation based on two years 
historical claims statistics. For other types of insurance, Chain Ladder technique is used – the main 
assumption underlying this technique is that a company’s past claims development experience can be used 
to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate 
the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers based on the 
observed development of past 5 years and expected loss ratios.  
 

The carrying value of insurance claims provisions as at 31 December 2015 was GEL 12,954 (2014: 
GEL 7,534). For more details on insurance claims provisions please refer to note 19. 
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4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued) 
 
Estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 
Allowance for impairment of Insurance Receivables and Reinsurance Receivables  
 
The Group regularly reviews its insurance receivables to assess impairment. For accounting purposes, the 
Group uses an incurred loss model for the recognition of losses on impaired financial assets. This means 
that losses can only be recognised when objective evidence of a specific loss event has been observed. 
Triggering events include significant financial difficulty of the customer and/or breach of contract such as 
default of payment. The amount of allowance is reduced by an amount of debt that the Group has adequate 
reasons to believe will be recovered. Management judgment is that historical trends can serve as a basis for 
predicting incurred losses and that this approach can be used to estimate the amount of recoverable debts 
as at the reporting period end. The carrying amount of allowance on insurance receivables as at 31 
December 2015 was GEL 5,474 (2014: GEL 2,664). For further details on allowance for impairment of 
insurance receivables and reinsurance receivables are disclosed in note 9 and 16. 
 
Impairment of goodwill 
 
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation 
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use 
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and 
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. No 
impairment loss was identified as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The key assumptions used 
to determine carrying amount of goodwill are provided in Note 14. 
 
Measurement of fair value of office buildings 
 
The fair value of office buildings is determined by independent professionally qualified appraisers. Fair value 
is determined using a combination of the internal capitalisation method (also known as discounted future 
cash flow method) and the sales comparison method.  
 
The estimates described above are subject to change as new transaction data and market evidence become 
available. 
 
The date of latest revaluation is 31 December 2015. For more details on measurement fair value of the office 
buildings please refer to Note 33. 
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5. Business Combination 
 
Acquisitions in 2015 
 
JSC Insurance Company Tao 
 
On 1 May 2015 JSC Insurance Company Aldagi (“Acquirer”) acquired 100% stake in JSC Insurance 
Company Tao (“Acquiree”), an insurance company operating in Georgia, from JSC PrivatBank – entity under 
common control. The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the Acquiree as at the date of 
acquisition were: 
 

 

Fair value 
Recognised on 

Acquisition 

Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents 257 

Bank deposits 4,961 
Insurance premiums receivable, net

1
 615 

Property and equipment 2 
Intangible assets 1 
Other assets 10 

Total assets 5,846 

  

 Liabilities 
 Insurance contract liabilities 1,252 

Other insurance liabilities 435 
Current income tax liabilities 62 
Other liabilities 239 

Total Liabilities 1,988 

  

 Fair value of net assets 3,858 
  

 Non-controlling interest – 
Goodwill arising on acquisition – 
Gain on bargain purchase recognised as equity contribution from parent (243) 

Total Consideration2 3,615 

  

 Cash paid 4,150 
Cash acquired with the subsidiary (257) 

Net cash outflow 3,893 

 
The Group decided to expand its existent market share on insurance market by acquiring the given 
company, further securing its leading position in the growing insurance sector. Acquiree offers various 
insurance services to legal entities and individuals in Georgia, including motor, life and health insurance 
products. Since acquisition, the Group continues to run the business of the acquiree using its own 
experience, resources and expertise, thus achieving significant cost optimization and further contributing to 
overall Group profits.  
 
Transaction was conducted at fair value and accounted for by acquisition method. Resulting gain on bargain 
purchase was recognised as equity contribution as it was transaction with entity under common control. 
 
Since the acquisition date, the Group recorded GEL 35,517 and GEL 6,013 of revenue and profit, 
respectively. In the same period, GEL 995 and GEL 894 of revenue and profit, respectively comes from the 
acquiree. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the period, the Group would have recorded 
GEL 51,153 and GEL 3,867 of revenue and profit respectively. Management considers that the deal will 
have positive impact on the value of the Group.  
 
1
  The fair value of insurance premium receivables amounted to GEL 615. The gross amount of receivables in 

GEL 2,116. GEL 1,501 of the premium receivables was not expected to be collected.  
2
  Consideration comprised GEL 3,615, which consists of GEL 4,150 in cash, less GEL 535 pre-existing liabilities to 

Acquiree.  
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6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December comprise: 

 
2015   2014 

Cash on hand  20  
 

 30  
Current accounts  2,715  

 
 2,658  

Total cash and cash equivalents  2,735  
 

 2,688  

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents of JSC Insurance Company Aldagi on stand-alone basis comprise GEL 2,122 
(2014 – GEL 2,651). The ISSSG requirement is to maintain minimum level of cash and cash equivalents at 
10% of the insurance contract liabilities subject to reservation as defined by ISSSG regulatory reserve 
requirement resolution, which as of the reporting date amounts to GEL 2,714 (2014 – GEL 2,090). Pension 
fund cash and cash equivalents which comprise GEL 1,412 (2014: GEL 2,398) (Note 15) are also eligible in 
minimum level requirements.  
 
 

7. Bank Deposits 
 
Bank deposits as of 31 December comprise: 

 

 
2015   2014 

- JSC Bank of Georgia 9,344 
 

2,563 
- JSC Kor Standart Bank 3,368 

 
2,149 

- JSC TBC Bank 3,161 
 

2,922 
- JSC Bank Republic 1,125 

 
– 

- JSC Liberty Bank 666 
 

575 
- JSC Finca Bank 319 

 
– 

- JSC PrivatBank – 
 

1,503 
- JSC BTA Bank – 

 
1,064 

- JSC Basis Bank – 
 

1,020 
- JSC Bank Constanta – 

 
859 

Total bank deposits 17,983 
 

12,655 

 
Bank deposits are represented by short (for 3 to 12 months) and medium-term placements with Georgian 
banks and earn annual interest of 8% to 13.5% (2014 – 7% to 12%). 
 
 

8. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets as of 31 December comprise: 
 

 
2015   2014 

JSC M2 Real Estate 983 
 

– 
JSC EVEX Medical Corporation 969 

 
– 

Georgian Water and Power, LLC 631 
 

– 

Total available-for-sale financial assets 2,583 
 

– 

 
Corporate bonds of JSC M2 Real Estate and JSC Evex Medical Corporation are issued in USD with nominal 
interest rate of 9.5% and mature in March 2017 and May 2017, respectively. Corporate bonds of Georgian 
Water and Power LLC are issued in GEL with nominal interest rate of 14% and mature in August 2017. 
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9. Insurance and Reinsurance Receivables 
 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables as of 31 December comprise: 
 

 
2015   2014 

Due from policyholders 21,713 
 

19,157 
Due from reinsurers 1,639 

 
1,335 

 
23,352 

 
20,492 

Less – allowance for impairment for amounts due from policyholders 
(Note 16) (5,474) 

 
(2,664) 

Total insurance and reinsurance receivables 17,878 
 

17,828 

 
The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate their fair values at the year end.  
 
 

10. Loans Issued 
 
As of 31 December Loans issued by the Group consist mainly of the loans granted to Block Georgia and 
JSC Insurance Company Imedi L.  
 

 
2015   2014 

Block Georgia 2,526 
 

1,799 
JSC Insurance Company Imedi L 2,073 

 
2,419 

JSC United Capital 625 
 

469 
Unimed Samtskhe, LLC – 

 
529 

Other 11 
 

– 

Total loans issued 5,235 
 

5,216 

 
Loans issued to JSC Insurance Company Imedi L are in GEL, earn annual interest of 12% and mature in 
2016.  
 
 
11. Taxation 
 
The corporate income tax expenses comprise: 

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Current tax charge 1,458  530 
Deferred tax charge – origination and reversal of temporary differences (792)  (225) 

Income tax expense 666  305 

 
Georgian legal entities must file individual tax declarations. The corporate tax rate was 15% for 2015. 
 
The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory income tax rates. As of 31 December a reconciliation 
of the income tax expense based on statutory rates with actual is as follows: 
 

 
2015 

 Five months 
ended 

31 December 2014 

Income before tax 4,254  1,424 
Statutory tax rate 15%  15% 

  

 

 Theoretical income tax expense at the statutory rate 638  214 
Non-taxable income (84)  (83) 
Non-deductible expenses 112  174 

Income tax expense 666  305 
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11. Taxation (continued) 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December and their movements for the respective years 
comprise: 

 

As at 1 August 

2014   

In the income 

statement   

As at 
31 December 

2014   

In the income 

statement   In OCI   

As at 
31 December 

2015 

Tax effect of 

deductible 
temporary 
differences 

           Insurance receivables 995 
 

89 
 

1,084 
 

414 
 

– 
 

1,498 
Tax loss carried 

forward 368 

 

199 

 

567 

 

124 

 

– 

 

691 

Other assets 720 
 

99 
 

819 
 

401 
 

– 
 

1,220 
Investments 87 

 
– 

 
87 

 
– 

 
– 

 
87 

Deferred tax assets 2,170 

 

387 

 

2,557 

 

939 

 

– 

 

3,496 

  
           Tax effect of 

deductible 

temporary 
differences 

           Insurance contracts 

liabilities 237 
 

(17) 
 

220 
 

116 
 

– 
 

336 
Property and 

equipment 168 

 

24 

 

192 

 

(57) 

 

48 

 

183 

Intangible assets 1,289 
 

135 
 

1,424 
 

91 
 

– 
 

1,515 
Other liabilities – 

 
20 

 
20 

 
(3) 

 
– 

 
17 

Deferred tax 
Liabilities 1,694 

 
162 

 
1,856 

 
147 

 
48 

 
2,051 

Net Deferred tax 

assets 476 
 

225 
 

701 
 

792 
 

(48) 
 

1,445 

 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to 
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities 
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.  
 
Georgia currently has a number of laws related to various taxes imposed by state governmental authorities. 
Applicable taxes include value added tax, corporate income tax (profits tax), and a turnover based tax, 
together with others. Laws related to these taxes have not been in force for significant periods in contrast to 
more developed market economies. Therefore, regulations are often unclear or non-existent and few 
precedents have been established. This creates tax risks in Georgia substantially more significant than 
typically found in countries with more developed tax systems.  
 
Management believes that the Group is in substantial compliance with the tax laws affecting its operations. 
However, the risk remains that relevant authorities could take differing positions with regard to interpretive 
issues. The Group’s operations and financial position will continue to be affected by Georgian political 
developments, including the application and interpretation of existing and future legislation and tax 
regulations. Such possible occurrences and their effect on the Group could have a material impact on the 
Group’s operations or its financial position in Georgia. 
 
 

12. Deferred Acquisition Costs 

 
Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”) on direct, assumed and ceded reinsurance are as follows: 

 
DAC 

At 1 August 2014  707  
Expenses deferred (note 28)  822  
Amortization (note 28)  (111) 

At 31 December 2014  1,418  

Expenses deferred (note 28)  1,547  
Amortization (note 28)  (1,050) 

At 31 December 2015  1,915  
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13. Property and Equipment 
 
The movements in property and equipment were as follows: 

 

 

Land and 
Buildings   

Furniture 
and 

fixtures   
Computers 

and equipment   
Motor 

vehicles   
Leasehold 

improvements   

Assets 
under 

construction   Total 

Cost 
             31 December 2014 8,083 

 
768 

 
874 

 
209 

 
149 

 
– 

 
10,083 

Acquisition through 
business combinations (note 5) – 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
2 

 
– 

 
2 

Additions 22 
 

51 
 

265 
 

88 
 

14 
 

– 
 

440 
Disposals – 

 
(92) 

 
(12) 

 
(11) 

 
– 

 
– 

 
(115) 

Revaluation recognised in OCI* 111  –  –  –  –  –  111 
Revaluation recognised in profit or 

loss (695) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(695) 

31 December 2015 7,521 
 

727 
 

1,127 
 

286 
 

165 
 

– 
 

9,826 

  

             Accumulated depreciation 
             31 December 2014 381 

 
319 

 
555 

 
113 

 
3 

 
– 

 
1,371 

Depreciation charge 149 
 

96 
 

161 
 

37 
 

5 
 

– 
 

448 
Revaluation recognised in OCI* (210)  –  –  –  –  –  (210) 
Revaluation recognised in profit or 

loss (320) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(320) 
Disposals – 

 
– 

 
(3) 

 
(8) 

 
– 

 
– 

 
(11) 

31 December 2015 – 
 

415 
 

713 
 

142 
 

8 
 

– 
 

1,278 

  

             Net book value 
             

31 December 2014 7,702 
 

449 
 

319 
 

96 
 

146 
 

– 
 

8,712 

31 December 2015 7,521 
 

312 
 

414 
 

144 
 

157 
 

– 
 

8,548 

 
* Income tax benefit relating to revaluation of Office Buildings through other comprehensive income comprises GEL 48. 
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13. Property and Equipment (continued) 
 

 

 

Land and 
Buildings 

 Furniture 
and 

fixtures 

 
Computers 

and equipment 

 
Motor 

vehicles 

 
Leasehold 

improvements 

 Assets 
under 

construction 

 

Total 

Cost 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1 August 2014  4,435  573  880  147  138  3,284  9,457 

Additions –  220  59  63  11  449  802 
Disposals –  (25)  (65)  (1)  –  (85)  (176) 
Transfer* 3,648  –  –  –  –  (3,648)  – 

31 December 2014 8,083  768  874  209  149  –  10,083 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Accumulated depreciation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1 August 2014  325  274  565  97  2  –  1,263 
Depreciation charge 56  48  55  16  1  –  176 
Disposals –  (3)  (65)  –  –  –  (68) 

31 December 2014 381  319  555  113  3  –  1,371 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Net book value 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 August 2014  4,110  299  315  50  136  3,284  8,194 

31 December 2014 7,702  449  319  96  146  –  8,712 

 
* In September 2014 construction of hotel in Batumi, Adjara region was finalised and the asset under construction of Premium Residence, LLC was transferred to Land and 

Buildings.  
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13. Property and Equipment (continued) 
 
Premises of the Group are subject to revaluation on a regular basis. The date of latest revaluation is 
31 December 2015. Revaluation was performed by an independent appraiser. Refer to Note 4 and 33 for 
details on fair value measurements of the Group’s premises. If the office buildings had been measured using 
the cost model, the carrying amounts of the office buildings as at 31 December 2015, and 31 December 
2014 would have been as follows:  
 

 
2015   2014 

Cost  8,131  
 

 8,109  
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  (647) 

 
 (476) 

Net carrying amount  7,484     7,633  

 
As at 31 December 2015, building with net book value of GEL 2,158 was pledged as collateral under a loan 
received by a related party (Note 34).  
 
 

14. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
 
The movements in goodwill and other intangible assets were as follows: 
 

 
Goodwill   Licenses   

Computer 
software   Total 

Cost 
       31 December 2014 13,063 

 
150 

 
873 

 
14,086 

Additions – 
 

769 
 

188 
 

957 
Acquisition through business 

combinations (note 5) – 
 

1 
 

– 
 

1 

31 December 2015 13,063 
 

920 
 

1,061 
 

15,044 

  

       Accumulated amortization 
       31 December 2014 – 

 
67 

 
344 

 
411 

Amortization charge – 
 

96 
 

289 
 

385 

31 December 2015 – 
 

163 
 

633 
 

796 

  

       Net book value 
       

31 December 2014 13,063 
 

83 
 

529 
 

13,675 

31 December 2015 13,063 
 

757 
 

428 
 

14,248 

 

 
Goodwill 

 
Licenses 

 Computer 
software 

 
Total 

Cost 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1 August 2014  13,063  136  681  13,880 

Additions –  14  192  206 

31 December 2014 13,063  150  873  14,086 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Accumulated amortization 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 1 August 2014  –  54  269  323 
Amortization charge –  13  75  88 

31 December 2014 –  67  344  411 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Net book value 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1 August 2014  13,063  82  412  13,557 

31 December 2014 13,063  83  529  13,675 
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14. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued) 
 
The recoverable amount of the total cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value-in-use 
calculation. The Group used cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by senior 
management covering from a one to three-year period. The Company as a whole is considered a single 
cash-generating unit for goodwill impairment test purposes.  
 
The recoverable amount of cash generating unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation 
through a cash flow projection based on the approved budget under the assumption that business will 
steadily grow and the cash flows will be stable. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is the 
weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”) of all cash-generating units. Discount rates were not adjusted for 
either a constant or a declining growth rate beyond the two-year period covered in financial budgets. 
Effective annual growth rate in three-year financial budgets is 11.19% (2014: 31.07%). For the purposes 
of the impairment test, a 0% permanent growth rate has been assumed when assessing the future operating 
cash flows of the cash-generating unit. Discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13.3% (2014: 
14.54%). 

 
Reasonably possible changes in key assumptions (-5 p.p. decrease in effective annual growth rate in the 
three-years budgets and +2 p.p. increase in discounting rate) would not have resulted in goodwill impairment 
as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. 
 
 

15. Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities 
 
Effective 2 June 2005, the Group established a private pension scheme. Contributions made by the Group’s 
employees and other individuals are recorded as an accumulated pension liability to be repaid to the pension 
plan clients after pension age. Also, any income earned on this accumulated pension liability on behalf of the 
insured individuals will be accumulated and added to the pension benefit obligation. When an employee 
reaches pension age, aggregated contributions, plus any earnings earned on the employee’s behalf are 
returned to the employee according to the schedule agreed with the employee.  
 
Having collected funds from individuals, the Group conducts investment activities on behalf of these 
individuals in order to receive additional profit on accumulated amounts. The total net accumulated amount 
of a single member of the pension plan equals the total net contributions made by him/her, plus any net 
investment income generated by the funds. Investment activities on behalf of pension plan members and the 
Group are managed by JSC Insurance Company Aldagi. According to the current arrangement of the plan, 
the pension age for men and women is 65 and 60 years, respectively. 
 
As of 31 December pension fund liabilities consisted of: 

 

 
2015   2014 

Total net contributions to the pension fund  9,129  
 

 7,458  
Total net income earned on net pension fund contributions  4,577  

 
 3,831  

Pension Fund Liabilities  13,706  
 

 11,289  

 
The movement of pension fund liabilities during 2015 and 2014 was as follows: 
 

 
2015 

 
2014 

Pension fund liabilities as of 1 January / 1 August  11,289  
 

 10,626  

    Total pension fund instalments during the year  3,028  
 

 1,365  
Administration commission  (34) 

 
 (14) 

Management commission  (213) 
 

 (80) 
Investment income commission  (142) 

 
 (52) 

Membership commission  (5) 
 

 (2) 
Net income (net of physical persons income tax)  1,140  

 
 304  

Funds withdrawn by Participants  (1,357) 
 

 (858) 

Total accumulated pension fund during the year  2,417  
 

 663  

Pension fund liabilities as of 31 December  13,706  
 

 11,289  
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15. Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities (continued) 
 
Pension fund assets as of 31 December consist mainly of Cash at bank and deposits with local commercial 
banks: 

 

 
2015   2014 

Bank Deposits  11,259  
 

 8,746  
Cash at bank  1,412  

 
 2,398  

Available-for-sale financial assets  1,035  
 

 145  

Pension Fund Assets  13,706  
 

 11,289  

 
The Group’s Pension Plan is in compliance with the requirements of the insurance regulator on pension 
liabilities allocation. 
 
The Group has contributed GEL 221 as of 31 December 2015 (2014: GEL 167) to its employees’ defined 
contribution pension plan. 
 
 

16. Allowances for Impairment and Provisions 
 
The movements in the allowance for insurance and reinsurance receivables and other assets were as 
follows: 

 

 

Insurance and 
reinsurance 

receivables (note 9) 
 

Other assets  
(note 17) 

 
Total 

1 August 2014 2,114 
 

– 
 

2,114 
Charge 281 

 
(9) 

 
272 

Write-off (72) 
 

9 
 

(63) 
Currency translation difference 341 

 
– 

 
341 

31 December 2014 2,664 
 

– 
 

2,664 

Charge 919 
 

– 
 

919 
Write-off (88) 

 
– 

 
(88) 

Recoveries 354 
 

– 
 

354 
Currency translation difference 1,625 

 
– 

 
1,625 

31 December 2015 5,474 
 

– 
 

5,474 

 
Allowances for impairment of assets are deducted from the carrying amounts of the related assets. 
 

 
17. Other Assets 
 
Other assets as of 31 December comprise: 
 

 
2015   2014 

Advances and prepayments 823 
 

988 
Trade Receivables 760 

 
774 

Receivables from regression 572 
 

424 
Assets transferred through subrogation 335 

 
267 

Inventory 120 
 

76 
Prepaid operating taxes 22 

 
35 

Other 331 
 

90 

 
2,963 

 
2,654 

Less – allowance for impairment of other assets (Note 16) – 
 

– 

Total other assets 2,963 
 

2,654 
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18. Equity 
 
As of 31 December 2015 the number of authorized ordinary shares was 2,700,000 (2014: 1,600,359) with a 
nominal value per share of one Georgian lari. Authorized shares amount to 2,700,000 (2014: 1,600,359) at 
par value of one Georgian lari. 1,889,155 authorized shares have been issued and fully paid.  
 
 2015  2014 

Authorised shares Thousands  Thousand 
     
Ordinary shares of 1GEL each 2,700  1,600 
     
 

 
Number of shares 
(thousand shares) 

 
Nominal amount 

 Ordinary  Ordinary 
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid    
At 1 August 2014 1,600  1,600 

At 31 December 2014 1,600  1,600 
Increase in share capital  

289  289 

At 31 December 2015 1,889  1,889 

 
The share capital of the Group was contributed by the shareholders in Georgian lari and they are entitled to 
dividends and any capital distribution in Georgian lari. No dividends were declared or paid during the 
reporting period. 
 
On 29 April 2015 authorised shares of the Company were increased by 1,100,000 new shares at nominal 
share value of GEL 1. From the increased authorized share capital 288,796 ordinary new shares were 
issued and fully paid at GEL 14.37 per share. From the total increase of Company’s capital of GEL 4,150, 
GEL 289 contributed to increase in share capital, and GEL 3,861 to increase in share premium.  

 

 
GEL ‘000 

Share premium 
 At 1 August 2014  2,529 

Share-based payments 354 

At 31 December 2014 2,883 

Share issue 3,861 
Gain on bargain purchase recognised as equity contribution (Note 5) 243 

At 31 December 2015 6,987 

 
The revaluation reserve for office buildings is used to record increases in the fair value of buildings and 
decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset previously recognised 
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 
 
Regulatory capital requirements in Georgia are set by the ISSSG and are applied to JSC Insurance 
Company Aldagi solely on a stand-alone basis. The ISSSG requirement is to maintain a minimum Capital of 
GEL 1,500, of which 80% should be kept as cash at bank or bank deposits. Bank confirmation letters are 
submitted to ISSSG on a monthly basis in order to prove compliance with the above-mentioned regulatory 
requirement.  
 
JSC Insurance Company Aldagi regularly and consistently complies with the ISSSG regulatory capital 
requirement. 
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19. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets 
 
Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets as of 31 December comprise: 
 

 
2015   2014 

Insurance contracts liabilities 
   - Unearned premiums provision 25,010 

 
20,452 

- Provisions for claims reported by policyholders 12,745 
 

7,534 
- Provisions for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 209 

 
– 

Total insurance contracts liabilities 37,964 
 

27,986 

  

   Reinsurance assets 
   - Reinsurers’ share in unearned premiums provision 5,806 

 
6,043 

- Reinsurers’ share in provisions for claims reported by policyholders 8,020 
 

5,247 
- Reinsurers’ share in provisions for claims incurred but not reported 

(IBNR) – 
 

– 

Total reinsurance assets 13,826 
 

11,290 

  

   Insurance contracts liabilities net of reinsurance 
   - Unearned premiums provision 19,204 

 
14,409 

- Provisions for claims reported by policyholders 4,725 
 

2,287 
- Provisions for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 209 

 
– 

Total insurance contracts liabilities net of reinsurance 24,138 
 

16,696 

 
Insurance contract liabilities as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 comprise: 
 

  
2015 2014 

 
Notes 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities  

Reinsurers’ 
share of 

liabilities  Net  

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities  

Reinsurers’ 
share of 

liabilities  Net 

Life insurance contracts (a) 660 63 597 180 28 152 
General insurance 

contracts (b) 37,304 13,763 23,541 27,806 11,262 16,544 

Total insurance 
contracts liabilities 

 

37,964 13,826 24,138 27,986 11,290 16,696 

 
(a) The movement during the year in life insurance contract liabilities is as follows. 
 

 
 2015 2014 

 
Notes 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

At 1 January / 1 August 
 

180 28 152 205 26 179 
Premiums written during 

the year 24 6,540 587 5,953 1,657 208 1,449 
Premiums earned during 

the year 
 

(6,572) (576) (5,996) (1,680) (206) (1,474) 
Claims incurred during 

the current accident 
year 

 
1,821 79 1,742 534 98 436 

Claims paid during the 
year 27 (1,576) (55) (1,521) (536) (98) (438) 

Assumed through 
Business Combination 

 

267 – 267 – – – 

At 31 December  
 

660 63 597 180 28 152 
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19. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (continued) 
 
(b) General insurance contract liabilities may be analysed as follows. Provision for claims settlement 

expenses is included in gross insurance contract liabilities. 
 

  
2015 2014 

 
Notes 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

Provisions for claims 
reported by 
policyholders (1) 12,303 7,996 4,307 7,388 5,248 2,140 

Provisions for claims 
incurred but not 
reported (IBNR) 

 

74 – 74 – – – 

Outstanding claims 
provision 

 
12,377 7,996 4,381 7,388 5,248 2,140 

 

Provision for unearned 
premiums (2) 24,927 5,767 19,160 20,418 6,014 14,404 

Total general 
insurance contracts 
liabilities  37,304 13,763 23,541 27,806 11,262 16,544 

 
(1) The provision for claims reported by policy holders and claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) 

may be analysed as follows:  
 

  
2015 2014 

 
Notes 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

At 1 January / 1 August 
 

7,388 5,248 2,140 9,251 6,532 2,719 
Claims incurred during 

the current accident 
year 

 
25,447 7,662 17,785 4,451 (148) 4,599 

Claims paid during the 
year 27 (20,705) (4,914) (15,791) (6,314) (1,136) (5,178) 

Assumed through 
Business Combination 

 

247 – 247 – – – 

At 31 December  
 

12,377 7,996 4,381 7,388 5,248 2,140 

 
(2) The provision for unearned premiums may be analysed as follows: 
 

  
2015 2014 

 
Notes 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities 

Reinsurers’ 
share of 
liabilities Net 

At 1 January / 1 August 
 

20,418 6,014 14,404 24,433 9,576 14,857 
Premiums written during 

the year 24 65,682 20,467 45,215 17,161 4,762 12,399 
Premiums earned during 

the year 
 

(61,911) (20,714) (41,197) (21,176) (8,324) (12,852) 
Assumed through 

Business Combination 
 

738 – 738 – – – 

At 31 December  
 

24,927 5,767 19,160 20,418 6,014 14,404 
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19. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (continued) 
 
Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets – terms, assumptions and sensitivities 
 
(a) Life insurance contracts  
 
(1) Terms and conditions 
 
Life insurance contracts offered by the Group only consist of annually or monthly renewable term 
conventional insurance contracts where lump sum benefits are payable on death. 
 
(2) Key assumptions 
 
Premiums for life insurance contracts are based on rates derived from mortality tables that are developed 
through actuarial research. These annually renewed insurance contracts only pay a lump sum benefit when 
the insured person dies within that year. At the reporting date, the pro rata premium for the policy year that is 
not yet earned, is deferred in the caption Insurance Contract Liabilities.  
 
(b) General insurance contracts 
 
(1) Terms and conditions 
 
The major classes of general insurance written by the Group include cargo, motor, household, property, 
freight forwarding liability, professional indemnity, financial risk and aviation. Risks under these policies 
usually cover twelve month duration. 
 
For general insurance contracts, claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reported by 
policyholders and claims incurred but not yet reported) are established to cover the ultimate cost of settling 
the liabilities in respect of claims that have occurred and are estimated based on known facts at the reporting 
date.  
 
The provisions are refined monthly as part of a regular ongoing process as claims experience develops, 
certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. Outstanding claims provisions are not discounted 
for the time value of money. 
 
(2) Assumptions 
 
For the calculation of the IBNR reserve including the liability adequacy test we refer to note 3 – Summary of 
accounting policies, Insurance Contract Liabilities and note 4 – Significant accounting judgements, estimates 
and assumptions. 
 
Insurance contract liabilities on insurance business written in Georgia significantly depend on fluctuations in 
currency exchange rates as the insured values on these contracts are denominated in US dollars (see 
analysis of currency risk in the Note 32). 
 
(3) Loss development triangle 
 
Reproduced below is an exhibit that shows the development of claims over a period of time on a gross and 
net reinsurance basis. 
 
The tables show the reserves for both claims reported and claims incurred but not yet reported and 
cumulative payments. 
 
In the tables below, the claims estimates are translated into Lari at the rate of exchange that applied at the 
end of the accident year.  
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19. Insurance Contract Liabilities and Reinsurance Assets (continued) 
 
Before the effect of reinsurance, the loss development table is: 
 

 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total 

      
 

 Accident year 8,771 7,428 16,301 13,058 16,406 31,128 
 One year later 8,702 7,653 14,048 12,570 15,817 – 
 Two years later 9,421 7,593 14,021 12,011 – – 
 Three years later 9,399 7,556 14,019 – – – 
 Four years later 9,367 7,476 – – – – 
 Five years later 9,543 – – – – –  

Current estimate of 
cumulative claims incurred 9,543 7,476 14,019 12,011 15,817 31,128 89,994 

  
     

 
 Accident year (6,665) (5,700) (10,733) (8,867) (12,268) (21,926) 
 One year later (7,559) (6,904) (13,013) (10,520) (14,185) – 
 Two years later (7,887) (7,441) (13,937) (11,463) – – 
 Three years later (7,887) (7,441) (14,012) – – – 
 Four years later (8,220) (7,441) – – – – 
 Five years later (8,222) – – – – –  

Cumulative payments to date (8,222) (7,441) (14,012) (11,463) (14,185) (21,926) (77,249) 

Gross Outstanding Claims 
provision per the statement 
of financial position 1,321 35 7 548 1,632 9,202 12,745 

      
 

 Current Estimation of 
Surplus/(deficiency) (772) (48) 2,282 1,047 589  

 % of Surplus/(deficiency) of 
initial gross reserve -8.80% -0.65% 14.00% 8.02% 3.59%  

  
After the effect of reinsurance, the loss development table is: 

 

 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total 

  
     

 
 Accident year 3,937 5,788 12,355 10,337 12,857 21,814 
 One year later 3,934 6,088 12,260 10,086 13,274 – 
 Two years later 4,506 6,132 12,253 10,190 – – 
 Three years later 4,398 6,090 12,249 – – – 
 Four years later 4,346 6,090 – – – – 
 Five years later 4,346 – – – – –  

Current estimate of 
cumulative claims incurred 4,346 6,090 12,249 10,190 13,274 21,814 67,963 

  
     

 
 Accident year (3,037) (5,055) (9,865) (8,172) (10,963) (17,669) 
 One year later (3,869) (5,979) (11,896) (9,806) (12,745) – 
 Two years later (4,074) (6,055) (12,175) (10,181) – – 
 Three years later (4,013) (6,055) (12,242) – – – 
 Four years later (4,346) (6,055) – – – – 
 Five years later (4,346) – – – – –  

Cumulative payments to date (4,346) (6,055) (12,242) (10,181) (12,745) (17,669) (63,238) 

Net Outstanding Claims 
provision per the statement 
of financial position – 35 7 9 529 4,145 4,725 

  
     

 
 Current Estimation of 

Surplus/(deficiency) (409) (302) 106 147 (419) 
 

 % of Surplus/(deficiency) of 
initial gross reserve -10.39% -5.22% 0.86% 1.42% -3.26% 
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20. Derivative Financial Liabilities 
 
On 1 November 2014, the Group entered into foreign exchange forward contract with JSC My Family Clinic 
(a related party). Notional amount for the active contract is USD 17.3 million. Foreign exchange loss on the 
contract comprise GEL 8,611 (2014: GEL 1,768). Contract matured on 1 November 2015. GEL 6,920 was 
settled during the year and GEL 3,691 remains payable towards JSC My Family Clinic as at 31 December 
2015 (Note 22). 
 
 

21. Other Insurance Liabilities 
 

Other insurance liabilities as of 31 December include: 

 

 
2015   2014 

Reinsurance payables  8,268  
 

 11,802  
Advances received 1,019  

 
 3,310  

Claims payable  190  
 

 237  

Other insurance liabilities  9,477  
 

 15,349  

 
 

22. Other Liabilities 
 
Other liabilities as of 31 December comprise: 
 

 
2015   2014 

Payable from forward contracts (Note 20) 3,691 
 

531 
Accruals for employee compensation 2,208  1,597 
Commission Payable 1,504  653 
Advances received 226  – 
Operating taxes payable 74 

 
58 

Trade Payables 21  309 
Other 788 

 
423 

Other liabilities 8,512 
 

3,571 

 
 
23. Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Legal 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management 
believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of the Group. 
 
Taxation 
 
Georgian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can 
occur frequently. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity 
of the Group may be challenged by the relevant regional and federal authorities. Recent events within the 
Georgia suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive position in its interpretation of the 
legislation and assessments and as a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been 
challenged in the past may be challenged. As such, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may 
be assessed. It is not practical to determine the amount of unasserted claims that may manifest, if any, or 
the likelihood of any unfavourable outcome. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in 
respect of taxes for five calendar years proceeding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews 
may cover longer periods. 
 
Management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and that it is probable 
that the Group’s tax, currency and customs positions will be sustained. 
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23. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 
 
Financial commitments and contingencies 
 
As of 31 December, the Group’s financial commitments and contingencies comprised the following: 

 

 
2015   2014 

Operating lease commitments: 
   - Not later than 1 year  642  

 
 473  

- Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  773  
 

 202  

Financial commitments and contingencies  1,415  
 

 675  

 
 
24. Net Insurance Revenue 
 
Net insurance revenue comprises: 

 
Notes 2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Premiums written on general insurance contracts 19  65,682    17,161  
Premiums written on life insurance contracts 19  6,540    1,657  

Total written premiums 
 

 72,222    18,818  

   

 

 Gross change in life provision 
 

 (41)   23  
Gross change in unearned premium provision 

 
 (4,350)   4,015  

Total gross earned premiums on insurance contracts 
 

 67,831    22,856  

   

 

 Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contracts premium 
revenue, 19  (587)   (208) 

Reinsurers’ share of general insurance contracts premium 
revenue, direct 19  (20,467)   (4,762) 

Reinsurers’ share of change in life provision 
 

 11    2  
Reinsurers’ share of change in general insurance contracts 

unearned premium provision 
 

 (246)   (3,562) 

Total reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums on 
insurance contracts 

 
 (21,289)   (8,530) 

Net insurance revenue 
 

 46,542    14,326  

 
 
25. Interest Income and Interest Expense 
 
Interest income and interest expense from financial instruments comprises: 

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Interest Income 
 

 

 Bank Deposits 1,320  395 
Loan issued 745  109 
Available-for-sale financial assets 156  – 

Interest Income 2,221  504 

  

 

 Interest expense 
 

 

 Borrowings (71)  (155) 
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26. Other Operating Income 
 
Other operating income comprises:  

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Other operating income  
 

 

 Revenue from Pension Fund 394  147 
Reinsurance commission 328  382 
Income from sale of green cards 234  79 
Income from hotel services 209  – 
Penalties received 162  – 
Income from rent of office space 30  9 
Other 267  130 

Total other operating income 1,624  747 

 
 
27. Net Insurance Claims Incurred 

 
Net insurance claims incurred comprise:  

 
Notes 2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

General insurance claims paid, direct 19  (20,705)   (6,314) 
Life insurance claims paid 19  (1,576)   (536) 

Total insurance claims paid 
 

 (22,281)   (6,850) 

   

 

 Reinsurers’ share of life claims paid 19  55    98  
Reinsurers’ share of general claims paid 19  4,914    1,136  
Gross change in total insurance contract liabilities 

 
 (5,016)   1,865  

Reinsurers’ share of change in total insurance contract 
liabilities 

 
 2,772    (1,284) 

Net insurance claims incurred 
 

 (19,556)   (5,035) 

 
 
28. Acquisition Costs, Net of Reinsurance 
 
Acquisition costs, net of reinsurance comprise: 

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Acquisition costs,  (6,350)   (2,347) 
Acquisition costs deferred (note 12)  1,547    822  
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs (note 12)  (1,050)   (111) 

Total Acquisition costs  (5,853)   (1,636) 

 
 
29. Salaries and Other Employee Benefits 
 

Salaries and employee benefits comprise: 

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Salaries  (4,684)   (1,568) 
Bonuses  (2,358)   (732) 
Insurance and other benefits  (128)   (58) 
Share-based compensation  (86)   (381) 

Salaries and other employee benefits  (7,256)   (2,739) 
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30. General and Administrative Expenses 
 
General and administrative expenses comprise: 

 

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Occupancy and rent (691)  (267) 
Legal and consultancy (475)  (388) 
Marketing and advertising (385)  (150) 
Representative (259)  (317) 
Utilities (181)  (73) 
Tax penalty (170)  – 
Operating taxes (122)  (131) 
Charity (119)  – 
Evacuation costs (113)  (34) 
Communications (110)  (68) 
Bank fees and commissions (94)  (26) 
Office supplies (82)  (62) 
Fuel (65)  (22) 
Business travel and related (56)  (28) 
Membership fees (51)  – 
Personnel training (45)  (9) 
Repair and maintenance of property and equipment (30)  (12) 
Printing (12)  (7) 
Security (12)  (3) 
Other (228)  (127) 

Total general and administrative expenses (3,300)  (1,724) 

 
 
31. Other Operating Expenses 
 
Other operating expenses comprise: 
 

 
2015 

 Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Loss on property revaluation (Note 13) (375)  – 
Fee and Commission Expenses (84)  (17) 
Other (268)  (40) 

Total operating expenses (727)  (57) 

 
 

32. Risk Management 
 
The activities of the Group are exposed to various risks. Risk management therefore is a critical component 
of its insurance activities. Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities but it is managed through a process of 
ongoing identification, measurement and daily monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. Each 
individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The 
main financial risks inherent to the Company’s operations are those related to credit, liquidity and market 
movements in interest and foreign exchange rates and equity prices. A summary description of the 
Company’s risk management policies in relation to those risks follows. 
 
Governance framework 
 
The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group from 
events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the Group’s performance objectives, including failing to 
exploit opportunities. The Group recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk 
management systems in place. 
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32. Risk Management (continued) 
 
Governance framework (continued) 
 
The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference for the Board, its 
committees and the associated executive management committees. Further a clear organization structure 
with documented delegated authorities and responsibilities from the Board to executive management 
committees and senior managers has been developed. Lastly, a Group policy framework which sets out the 
risk appetite of the Group, risk management, control and business conduct standards for the Group’s 
worldwide operations has been put in place. Each policy has a member of senior management who is 
charged with overseeing compliance with the policy throughout the Group. 
 
The Board has approved the Group risk management policies and meets regularly to approve on any 
commercial, regulatory and own organizational requirements in such policies. The policies define the 
Group’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and 
diversification of assets, alignment of underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals and 
specify reporting requirements.  
 
Capital management objectives  
 
The Group has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to managing 
the risks that affect its capital position: 

► To maintain the required level of stability of the Group thereby providing a degree of security to 
policyholders. 

► To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on 
capital employed meet the requirements of its capital providers and of its shareholders. 

► To retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity. 

► To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the 
policyholders, regulators and stakeholders. 

 
The operations of the Group are also subject to local regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where it 
operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain 
restrictive provisions to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of insurance companies to 
meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise. 
 
The Group’s capital management policy for its insurance and non-insurance business is to hold sufficient 
liquid assets to cover statutory requirements based on the ISSSG directives. 
 
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes total equity less investment in 
subsidiaries and associates. Certain adjustments are made to IFRS-based results and reserves, as 
prescribed by the ISSSG directives. As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 the Group complied 
with requirements related to the minimum required capital – GEL 1,500 for life insurance, GEL 1,000 for non-
life insurance and GEL 1,500 for reinsurance. 
 
Approach to capital management 
 
The Group seeks to optimize the structure and sources of capital to ensure that it consistently maximizes 
returns to shareholders and policyholders. 
 
The Group’s approach to managing capital involves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a co-ordinated 
manner, assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis and taking 
appropriate actions to influence the capital position of the Group. 
 
Insurance risk 
 
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of 
the amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such contracts is that 
actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by 
the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than originally estimated and 
subsequent development of long term claims.  
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32. Risk Management (continued) 
 
Insurance risk (continued) 
 
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts 
as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by change in any subset of the 
portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and 
implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. The 
Group establishes underwriting guidelines and limits, which stipulate who may accept what risks and the 
applicable limits. These limits are continuously monitored. 
 
The Group primarily uses loss ratio and combined ratio to monitor its insurance risk. Loss ratio is defined as 
net insurance claims divided by net insurance revenue. Combined ratio is sum of loss ratio and expense 
ratio. Expense ratio is defined as operating expenses excluding net interest income and foreign exchange 
and translation losses divided by net insurance revenue. The Group’s loss ratios and combined ratios 
calculated on a net basis were as follows:  
 

 
2015   2014 

Loss ratio 42% 
 

35% 
Combined ratio 79% 

 
77% 

 

Key assumptions 

Claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reported by policyholders and claims incurred but not yet 
reported - IBNR) are established to cover the ultimate cost of settling the liabilities in respect of claims that 
have occurred and are estimated based on known facts, including potential outstanding loss notifications, 
experience with similar claims and case law, at and after the reporting date.  

 

The Group has used all possible and currently available information to estimate provision for claims reported 
by policyholders including claims' adjustment expenses according to every class of insurance contract. 
Provision for IBNR has been evaluated based on historical pattern of delays in claims reporting and claims 
payment using Chain Ladder method and Stochastic model. In addition, larger reported claims are usually 
separately assessed by loss adjusters. The claims projection assumptions are generally intended to provide 
a best estimate of the most likely or expected outcome.  

 

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Group’s past and future claims development 
experience which can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As 
such, this method extrapolates the development of paid and incurred losses based on the observed 
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by 
accident years as well as by significant business lines. Insurance contracts liabilities on insurance business 
written significantly depends on fluctuations in currency exchange rates as the insurance values on these 
contracts are denominated in US dollars. 

 

Sensitivities 

The general insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. Because of delays that 
arise between occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eventual settlement, the outstanding 
claim provisions are not known with certainty at the reporting date. The most significant risks arise from 
changes in loss frequency and loss severity – quantity of claims and average claim amount are key inputs for 
Motor Insurance IBNR estimation. Motor insurance reserves are rather sensitive to Lari devaluation and 
forex risk as significant portion of car repair cost is linked to foreign currencies. 
 
The business of the Group comprises both life and general insurance contracts. 
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32. Risk Management (continued) 
 
Insurance risk (continued) 
 
(1) Life insurance contracts  
 
The Group writes life insurance contracts, where the life of the policyholder is insured against death or 
permanent disability, usually for a pre-determined amount. 
 

The Group’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risk 
and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and 
geography, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health 
conditions and family medical history, regular review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well 
as detailed claims handling procedures. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection 
criteria. For example, the Group has the right not to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles and 
it has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group to 
pursue third parties for payment of some or all cost. The Group further enforces a policy of actively 
managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future 
developments that can negatively impact the Group. 
 
Currently, insured risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Group 
whilst undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a 
portfolio basis. For contracts where death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could 
increase the overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural 
disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected. A Group wide reinsurance limit of GEL 5,000 on 
all high risk individuals insured is in place. 
 

Direct insurance business written is taken in Georgia only and the reinsurance companies are all based 
outside Georgia. Gross claims liabilities and net claims liabilities as at 31 December 2015 on life insurance 
contracts is GEL 660 and GEL 597, respectively (2014: GEL 180 and GEL 152). 
 
(2) General insurance contracts 
 
The Group principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts: motor own damage, 
property, financial risks, guarantees, cargo, freight forwarding liability, general third party liability, motor third 
party liability, professional indemnity, marine hull, aviation hull, performance bond. Risks under non-life 
insurance policies usually cover twelve month duration. 
 
For general insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from climate changes and natural disasters.  
 
These risks vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Group, type of risk insured 
and by industry. Undue concentration by amounts can have a further impact on the severity of benefit 
payments on a portfolio basis.  
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32. Risk Management (continued) 
 
Insurance risk (continued) 
 
The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The 
variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are 
designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is 
largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors. Further, strict claim review policies to assess 
all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation 
of possible fraudulent claims are all policies and procedures put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the 
Group. The Group further enforces a policy of actively managing and prompt pursuit of claims, in order to 
reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Group. 
 
The Group has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as well 
as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events, for example 
hurricanes, earthquakes and flood damages. 
  
The table below sets out the concentration of general insurance contract liabilities by type of contract. 

 

 
2015 2014 

 

Gross 
Insurance 
contract 
liabilities   

Reinsurers 
share in 

Insurance 
contract  
liabilities   

Net 
Insurance 
contract  
liabilities   

Gross 
Insurance 
contract 
liabilities   

Reinsurers 
share in 

Insurance 
contract  
liabilities   

Net 
Insurance 
contract  
liabilities 

Motor 13,965 
 

61 
 

13,904 
 

10,037 
 

46 
 

9,991 
Property 13,835 

 
7,496 

 
6,339 

 
12,285 

 
7,939 

 
4,346 

Guarantees 1,042 
 

288 
 

754 
 

2,451 
 

1,628 
 

823 
Liability 7,924 

 
5,886 

 
2,038 

 
2,669 

 
1,610 

 
1,059 

Health 119 
 

– 
 

119 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
Cargo 419 

 
32 

 
387 

 
364 

 
39 

 
325 

 
37,304 

 
13,763 

 
23,541 

 
27,806 

 
11,262 

 
16,544 

 
For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from changes in loss frequency and loss 
severity in motor insurance. These risks vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the 
Group, and the type of risks insured. 
 
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts 
and geographical areas, as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by 
changes in any subset of the portfolio. 
 
The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies. 
The Group establishes underwriting guidelines and limits that stipulate who may accept risks, their nature 
and applicable limits. These limits are continuously monitored. Strict claim review policies to assess all new 
and ongoing claims, as well as the investigation of possible fraudulent claims are in place. The Group also 
enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly processing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to 
unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Group. 
 
Business ceded is placed on different terms (quota share, excess of loss) with retention limits varying by 
product line and territory. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with 
the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the statement of 
financial position as reinsurance assets.  
 
Direct insurance business written is taken in Georgia only and the reinsurance companies are all based 
outside Georgia. 
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32. Risk Management (continued)  
 

Financial risk 
 

(1) Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the 
other party to incur a financial loss. The Company manages the level of credit risk it accepts through a 
comprehensive group credit risk policy setting out the assessment and determination of what constitutes 
credit risk for the Company; setting up of exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties, 
geographical and industry segments; right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors; 
guidelines on obtaining collateral and guarantees; reporting of credit risk exposures and breaches to the 
monitoring authority; monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for 
pertinence and changing environment. The following is a brief description of how the Company manages its 
credit risk exposure. 
 

Reinsurance 
 

Even though the Group may have reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its 
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any 
reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements. The Group is 
neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Group substantially dependent upon 
any reinsurance contract. The highest single counterparty exposure is 26% of total reinsurance assets at the 
reporting date (2014: 28%). The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors 
concentration of credit risks arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or economic characteristics of 
the reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurers’ insolvencies. 
 

Loans and receivables 
 

The Group sets the maximum amounts and limits that may be advanced to / placed with individual corporate 
counterparties which are set by reference to their long term ratings. The credit risk in respect of customer 
balances, incurred on non-payment of premiums or contributions will only persist during the grace period 
specified in the policy document or trust deed on the expiry of which the policy is either paid up or 
terminated. 
 

Credit quality per class of financial assets 
 

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group through internal credit ratings. The table below 
shows the credit quality by class of asset for loan-related lines in the statement of financial position. 
 

 
Notes 

 Neither past due 
nor impaired as at  
31 December 2015 

 Past-due but not 
impaired as at  

31 December 2015 

 
Total as at  

31 December 2015 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Bank Deposits 7  17,983  –  17,983 
Loan Issued 10  3,202  2,033  5,235 
Available-for-sale financial assets 8  2,583  –  2,583 
Insurance and reinsurance 

receivables 9 
 

16,302  1,576  17,878 
Reinsurance assets 19  13,826  –  13,826 

Total 
 

 
53,896  3,609  57,505 

 

 
Notes 

 Neither past due 
nor impaired as at  
31 December 2014 

 Past-due but not 
impaired as at  

31 December 2014 

 
Total as at  

31 December 2014 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Bank Deposits 7  12,655  –  12,655 
Loan Issued 10  4,065  1,151  5,216 
Insurance and reinsurance 

receivables 9 
 

16,709  1,119  17,828 
Reinsurance assets 19  11,290  –  11,290 

Total 
 

 
44,719  2,270  46,989 

 

The Group does not have a credit rating system to evaluate credit quality of either past due or impaired 
financial assets.   
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32. Risk Management (continued)  
 
Financial risk (continued) 
 
(2) Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet cash commitments 
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to sell financial assets 
quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual obligation; or insurance 
liability falling due for payment earlier than expected; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated. 
 
The major liquidity risk confronting the Group is the daily calls on its available cash resources in respect of 
claims arising from insurance contracts and the maturity of debt securities. 
 
The Group manages liquidity through a Group liquidity risk policy which determines what constitutes liquidity 
risk for the Group; specifies minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls; setting up of contingency 
funding plans; specify the sources of funding and the events that would trigger the plan; concentration of 
funding sources; reporting of liquidity risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority; monitoring 
compliance with liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity risk policy for pertinence and changing 
environment. 
 
The table below analyses assets and liabilities of the Group into their relevant maturity groups based on the 
remaining period at the reporting date to their contractual maturities or expected repayment dates. 
 

31 December 2015 Within one year   
More than one 

year    Total  

       
Assets 

     Cash and cash equivalents 2,735 
 

– 
 

2,735 
Bank Deposits 16,062 

 
1,921 

 
17,983 

Available-for-sale financial assets – 
 

2,583 
 

2,583 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 17,676 

 
202 

 
17,878 

Loan issued 920 
 

4,315 
 

5,235 
Reinsurance assets (except reinsurers’ share in 

UPR) 6,952 
 

1,068 
 

8,020 
Pension Fund Assets – 

 
13,706 

 
13,706 

Other assets 2,481 
 

482 
 

2,963 

Total assets 46,826 
 

24,277 
 

71,103 

  

     Liabilities 
     Insurance contract liabilities (except UPR) 11,248 

 
1,706 

 
12,954 

Derivative financial liabilities – 
 

– 
 

- 
Other insurance liabilities 8,887 

 
590 

 
9,477 

Borrowings – 
 

– 
 

- 
Pension fund liabilities – 

 
13,706 

 
13,706 

Other liabilities 8,356 
 

156 
 

8,512 
Total liabilities 28,491 

 
16,158 

 
44,649 

Net position 18,335 
 

8,119 
 

26,454 

Accumulated gap 18,335 
 

26,454 
   

  



JSC Insurance Company Aldagi Group    Notes to 2015 Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements 

(Thousands of Georgian lari unless otherwise stated) 
 
 

44 

32. Risk Management (continued)  
 

Financial risk (continued) 
 
(2) Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

31 December 2014 Within one year 
 More than one 

year 
 

 Total  

       
Assets 

 
 

 
 

 Cash and cash equivalents 2,688  –  2,688 
Bank Deposits 11,429  1,226  12,655 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 17,822  6  17,828 
Loan issued 2,328  2,888  5,216 
Reinsurance assets (except reinsurers’ share in 

UPR) 4,145  1,102  5,247 
Pension Fund Assets –  11,289  11,289 
Other assets 2,258  396  2,654 

Total assets 40,670  16,907  57,577 

  
 

 
 

 
 Liabilities 

 
 

 
 

 Insurance contract liabilities (except UPR) 6,131  1,403  7,534 
Derivative financial liabilities 1,768  –  1,768 
Other insurance liabilities 12,608  2,741  15,349 
Borrowings 2,156  774  2,930 
Pension fund liabilities –  11,289  11,289 
Other liabilities 3,571  –  3,571 
Total liabilities 26,234  16,207  42,441 

Net position 14,436  700  15,136 

Accumulated gap 14,436  15,136  
  

The amounts and maturities in respect of insurance liabilities are based on management’s best estimate 
based on statistical techniques and past experience.  
 
In management’s opinion, liquidity is sufficient to meet the Group’s present requirements. 
 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2014 
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are 
treated as if notice were to be given immediately.  

 
Borrowings 
as at 31 December 2014 

Less than 
3 months 

 3 to 12 
months 

 1 to 5  
years 

 Over  
5 years 

 
Total 

Borrowings 557  1,758  810  –  3,125 
Derivative financial liabilities –  1,768  –  –  1,768 

Total undiscounted borrowings 557  3,526  810  –  4,893 

 
Market Risk 
 
Market risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables 
such as interest rates and foreign exchanges.  
 
The Group structures levels of market risk it accepts through a Group market risk policy that determines 
what constitutes market risk for the Group; basis used to fair value financial assets and liabilities; asset 
allocation and portfolio limit structure; diversification benchmarks by type of instrument and geographical 
area; sets out the net exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties, geographical and 
industry segments; control over hedging activities; reporting of market risk exposures and breaches to the 
monitoring authority; monitoring compliance with market risk policy and review of market risk policy for 
pertinence and changing environment, periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from adverse 
changes in market conditions and establishing and maintaining appropriate stop-loss limits and margins. 
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32. Risk Management (continued) 
 
Market Risk (continued) 
 
Currency risk 
 
The Group is exposed to effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its 
financial position and cash flows. The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in Georgian lari and 
its exposure to foreign exchange risk arise primarily with respect to US Dollars and Euro, as the insurance 
operations denominated in US dollars form significant part of the Company’s operations. 
 
The Group’s financial assets are primarily denominated in the same currencies as its insurance and 
investment liabilities, which mitigate the foreign currency exchange rate risk for the overseas operations. 
Thus the main foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currencies 
other than those in which insurance and investment liabilities are expected to be settled. 
 

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposure at  
31 December 2014 on its non-trading monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows.  
The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the 
Georgian lari, with all other variables held constant on the income statement. A negative amount in the table 
reflects a potential net reduction in income statement, while a positive amount reflects a net potential 
increase. 

 
As at 31 December 2015 

 
GEL 

 
USD 

 
EUR 

 
Total 

Assets 
       Cash and cash equivalents 1,206 

 
1,405 

 
124 

 
2,735 

Bank Deposits 17,983 
 

– 
 

– 
 

17,983 
Available-for-sale financial assets 631 

 
1,952 

 
– 

 
2,583 

Loans Issued 2,076 
 

3,159 
 

– 
 

5,235 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 4,436 

 
13,180 

 
262 

 
17,878 

Reinsurance assets 5,901 
 

7,925 
 

– 
 

13,826 

Total assets 32,233 
 

27,621 
 

386 
 

60,240 

  

       Liabilities 
       Insurance contract liabilities 28,601 

 
9,350 

 
13 

 
37,964 

Derivative financial liabilities – 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
Other insurance liabilities 1,644 

 
7,574 

 
259 

 
9,477 

Borrowings – 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
Other liabilities 8,131 

 
381 

 
– 

 
8,512 

Total liabilities 38,376 
 

17,305 
 

272 
 

55,953 

Net position (6,143) 
 

10,316 
 

114 
 

4,287 

  

       Increase in currency rate in % 
  

15% 
 

20% 
  Effect on profit 

  
1,547 

 
23 

    

       Decrease in currency rate in % 
  

-15% 
 

-20% 
  Effect on profit 

  
(1,547) 

 
(23) 
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32. Risk Management (continued) 
 
Market Risk (continued) 
 
Currency risk (continued) 
 

 
As at 31 December 2014 

 
GEL  USD  EUR  Total 

Assets 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Cash and cash equivalents 2,381  10  297  2,688 

Bank Deposits 11,029  1,626  –  12,655 
Loans Issued 2,950  2,266  –  5,216 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 2,477  15,149  202  17,828 
Reinsurance assets 6,103  5,187  –  11,290 

Total assets 24,940  24,238  499  49,677 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Liabilities 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Insurance contract liabilities 21,404  6,582  –  27,986 

Derivative financial liabilities 1,768  –  –  1,768 
Other insurance liabilities 3,647  11,508  194  15,349 
Borrowings 30  2,900  –  2,930 
Other liabilities 3,279  226  66  3,571 

Total liabilities 30,128  21,216  260  51,604 

Net position (5,188)  3,022  239  (1,927) 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Increase in currency rate in % 

 
 23.4%  6.5%  

 Effect on profit 
 

 708  16  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Decrease in currency rate in % 
 

 -23.4%  -6.5%  
 Effect on profit 

 
 (708)  (16)  

  
Foreign currencies represent mainly US Dollar and Euro amounts, but also include currencies from other 
OECD countries. The Group’s principal cash flows (revenues, operating expenses) are largely generated in 
Georgian lari. As a result, future movements in the exchange rate between the Georgian lari and US Dollar 
will affect the carrying value of the Group’s US Dollar denominated monetary assets and liabilities. Such 
changes may also affect the Group’s ability to realize investments in non-monetary assets as measured in 
USD in these financial statements. 
 
 

33. Fair Values Measurements 

 
Fair value hierarchy 

 
The following tables show analysis of assets and liabilities measured at fair value or for which fair values are 
disclosed by level of the fair value hierarchy: 
 

 
Level 1 

 
Level 2 

 
Level 3 

 
Total 2015 

Assets measured at fair value 
       Office buildings – 

 
– 

 
7,521 

 
7,521 

  

       Assets for which fair values are disclosed 
       Cash and cash equivalents 2,735 

 
– 

 
– 

 
2,735 

Bank Deposits – 
 

17,983 
 

– 
 

17,983 
Loan Issued – 

 
– 

 
5,235 

 
5,235 

Available-for-sale financial assets –  2,583  –  2,583 
Pension Fund Assets 2,447 

 
11,259 

 
– 

 
13,706 
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33. Fair Values Measurements (continued) 
 
Fair value hierarchy (continued) 

 

 
Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 2014 

Assets measured at fair value 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Office buildings –  –  7,702  7,702 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Assets for which fair values are disclosed 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Cash and cash equivalents 2,688  –  –  2,688 

Bank deposits –  12,655  –  12,655 
Loan Issued –  –  5,216  5,216 
Pension Fund Assets 2,543  8,746  –  11,289 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 Liabilities measured at fair value 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Derivative Financial liabilities –  1,768  –  1,768 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Borrowings –  –  2,930  2,930 

 
The following is a description of the determination of fair value for financial instruments and property which 
are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques. These incorporate the Group’s estimate of 
assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments. 
 
Derivative Financial Liabilities 
 
Derivative Financial Liabilities consist of foreign exchange forward contract used to manage Group’s 
exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Inputs used to determine fair value of the 
derivative liability are foreign exchange rates and are all directly observable on the active market. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are valued using a valuation technique or pricing models consist of 
unquoted equity and debt securities. These securities are valued using models which incorporate data 
observable in the market. 
 
Office Buildings 
 
Office buildings at fair value consist of land and office buildings, for which fair value is derived by some of the 
inputs which are not based on observable market data. 
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33. Fair Values Measurements (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as
shown below:

Level 3 property at fair value

2015
Valuation
technique

Significant
unobservable

inputs
Amount
Range

Area
Range

Sensitivity of the input to fair
value

Office
Buildings
and Hotel 7,521

1,603
Market

approach Price per square metre 1,121-2,951 66-402

Increase (decrease) in the price
per square metre would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value

5,918
Income

approach
Market rent rate, room
rate per square metre 49-255 593-2,283

Increase (decrease) in the market
rent rate and room rate would
result in increase (decrease) in
fair value

Occupancy rate 40%-80% 593-2,283

Increase (decrease) in the
occupancy rate would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value

Yield rate, discount
rate 11.2%-14.2% 593-2,283

Increase (decrease) in the yield
rate and discount rate would result
in decrease (increase) in fair value

2014
Valuation
technique

Significant
unobservable

inputs
Amount
Range

Area
Range

Sensitivity of the input to fair
value

Office
Buildings 7,702

3,652
Market

approach Price per square metre 779-5,311 68-593

Increase (decrease) in the price
per square metre would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value

4,050
Cost

approach
Replacement cost per

square metre 1,846 1,609

Increase (decrease) in the
replacement cost per square metre
would result in increase (decrease)
in fair value

Developers’ profit margin 10%

Increase (decrease) in the
developers’ profit margin would
result in increase (decrease) in fair
value

Land price per square
metre 388 1,085

Increase (decrease) in the price
per square metre would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value
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33. Fair Values Measurements (continued) 
 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value 
 
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, carrying values of financial assets and liabilities that are not carried at 
fair value in consolidated statement of financial position was not significantly different to their fair values.  
 
The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for those financial 
instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value  
 
For financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or have a short term maturity (less than three 
months) it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also 
applied to variable rate financial instruments. The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried 
at amortised cost are estimated by comparing market interest rates when they were first recognised with 
current market rates offered for similar financial instruments. 
 
The fair value of loans issued and borrowings carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing market 
interest rates when they were first recognised with current market rates offered for similar financial 
instruments.  
 
 

34. Related Party Transactions 
 
In accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one party has 
the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or 
operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the 
substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form. 
 
Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between 
related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between 
unrelated parties. All transactions with related parties disclosed below have been conducted on an arm’s-
length basis. 
 
The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and related expense and 
income for the year are as follows: 
 

 
2015 2014 

 
Parent 

Entities 
under 

common 
control Other Parent 

Entities 
under 

common 
control Other 

Assets 
      Cash and cash equivalents – 2,231 – 2,417 – – 

Bank Deposits – 9,344 – 2,563 – – 
Insurance and reinsurance 

receivables – 1,669 – 380 303 – 
Pension Fund Assets – 6,149 – 1,790 – – 
Other assets – 400 – 140 148 – 
Available-for-sale financial assets – 1,952 631 – – – 

Loan Issued – 2,074 – – 2,947 – 

 

– 23,819 631 7,290 3,398 – 

Liabilities 
      Borrowings – – – 1,181 – – 

Derivative financial liabilities – – – – 1,768 – 

Other liabilities – 3,954 – 136 640 – 

 

– 3,954 – 1,317 2,408 – 

PPE pledged as collateral on 
behalf of related parties – 2,158 – – – – 

 
  



JSC Insurance Company Aldagi Group    Notes to 2015 Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements 

(Thousands of Georgian lari unless otherwise stated) 
 
 

50 

34. Related Party Transactions (continued) 
 

 
2015 Five months ended 31 December 2014 

 
Parent 

Entities 
under 

common 
control Other Parent 

Entities 
under 

common 
control Other 

Income and expenses 
      Insurance premium earned 2,066 3,650 – 1,652 321 – 

Interest income on current and 
deposit accounts in banks 509 243 – 61 – – 

Interest Income on available-for-
sale financial assets – 125 31 – – – 

Interest Income on loans – 424 – – 39 – 
Other operating income  – 131 – – 40 – 
General and administrative 

expenses (288) (179) – (215) – – 
Acquisition costs, net of 

reinsurance (43) (94) – (34) (12) – 
Interest expense on borrowings (35) (25) – (66) – – 
Salaries and other employee 

benefits – (68) – – (26) – 
Foreign exchange and translation 

loses – (8,611) – – (2,299) – 

 

2,209 (4,404) 31 1,398 (1,937) – 

 
* Entities under common control include BGEO Group plc subsidiaries. 
 

 
Compensation of key management personnel (2015:11 persons; 2014: 11 persons) comprised the following: 
 

 
2015 

 

Five months ended 
31 December 2014 

Salaries and bonuses  2,256  
 

 704  
Share-based payments compensation  86  

 
 381  

Total key management compensation  2,342 
 

 1,085  
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35. Additional Financial Information 
 
Consolidation schedule for the statement of financial position: 

 
2015 2014 

 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
balances and 
consolidation 
adjustments Total 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
balances and 
consolidation 
adjustments  Total 

Assets 
        Cash and cash equivalents 2,122 613 – 2,735 2,652 36 – 2,688 

Bank Deposits 14,893 3,090 – 17,983 12,655 – – 12,655 
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,583 – – 2,583 – – – – 
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 17,862 303 (287) 17,878 18,072 – (244) 17,828 
Loan Issued 4,517 2,294 (1,576) 5,235 10,949 62 (5,795) 5,216 
Reinsurance assets 13,826 12 (12) 13,826 11,290 – – 11,290 
Current income tax assets 36 263 – 299 – 82 – 82 
Deferred income tax assets 666 779 – 1,445 133 568 – 701 
Deferred acquisition costs 1,915 – – 1,915 1,418 – – 1,418 
Property and equipment 3,410 5,138 – 8,548 3,137 5,575 – 8,712 
Goodwill and other intangible assets 14,247 1 – 14,248 13,675 – – 13,675 
Pension Fund Assets 13,706 – – 13,706 11,289 – – 11,289 
Other assets 1,913 1,050 – 2,963 1,637 1,017 – 2,654 

Investment in subsidiaries 14,520 – (14,520) – 3,863 – (3,863) – 

Total assets 106,216 13,543 (16,395) 103,364 90,770 7,340 (9,902) 88,208 

  
        Equity 
        Share capital 1,889 14,485 (14,485) 1,889 1,600 5,478 (5,478) 1,600 

Additional paid-in capital 6,744 – 243 6,987 2,883 – – 2,883 
Other reserves 358 45 (45) 358 85 45 (45) 85 

Retained earnings 26,754 (2,713) (233) 23,808 22,865 (4,305) 1,660 20,220 

Total equity 35,745 11,817 (14,520) 33,042 27,433 1,218 (3,863) 24,788 

  
        Liabilities 
        Insurance contract liabilities 37,438 546 (20) 37,964 27,986 – – 27,986 

Derivative financial liabilities – – – – 1,768 – – 1,768 
Other insurance liabilities 9,051 426 – 9,477 15,349 – – 15,349 
Current income tax liabilities 663 – – 663 527 – – 527 
Borrowings 1,378 198 (1,576) – 2,960 5,765 (5,795) 2,930 
Pension Fund Liability 13,706 – – 13,706 11,289 – – 11,289 

Other liabilities 8,235 556 (279) 8,512 3,458 357 (244) 3,571 

Total liabilities 70,471 1,726 (1,875) 70,322 63,337 6,122 (6,039) 63,420 

Total equity and liabilities 106,216 13,543 (16,395) 103,364 90,770 7,340 (9,902) 88,208 
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35. Additional Financial Information (continued) 
 
Consolidation schedule for the income statement: 

 
2015 Five months ended 31 December 2014 

 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
transactions Total 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
transactions   Total  

         Gross earned premiums on insurance 
contracts 67,466 499 (134) 67,831 22,904 – (48) 22,856 

Reinsurers’ share of gross earned 
premiums on insurance contracts (21,289) (90) 90 (21,289) (8,530) – – (8,530) 

Net insurance revenue 46,177 409 (44) 46,542 14,374 – (48) 14,326 

         Interest Income 2,088 396 (263) 2,221 868 – (364) 504 

Other operating income  957 770 (103) 1,624 659 122 (34) 747 

Other revenue 3,045 1,166 (366) 3,845 1,527 122 (398) 1,251 

Total revenue 49,222 1,575 (410) 50,387 15,901 122 (446) 15,577 

         Gross insurance benefits and claims 
paid (22,154) (156) 29 (22,281) (6,850) – – (6,850) 

Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance 
benefits and claims paid 4,969 29 (29) 4,969 1,234 – – 1,234 

Gross change in insurance contracts 
liabilities (5,202) 204 (18) (5,016) 1,865 – – 1,865 

Reinsurers’ share of gross change in 
insurance contracts liabilities 2,772 (18) 18 2,772 (1,284) – – (1,284) 

Net insurance claims (19,615) 59 – (19,556) (5,035) – – (5,035) 

         Acquisition costs, net of reinsurance (5,897) – 44 (5,853) (1,636) – – (1,636) 
Salaries and other employee benefits (6,934) (322) – (7,256) (2,765) 26 – (2,739) 
General and administrative expenses (3,255) (148) 103 (3,300) (1,642) (164) 82 (1,724) 
Depreciation and amortization 

expenses (690) (143) – (833) (212) (52) – (264) 
Impairment charge (886) (33) – (919) (272) – – (272) 
Interest Expense (206) (128) 263 (71) (148) (371) 364 (155) 
Foreign exchange and translation 

loses (6,835) (783) – (7,618) (1,837) (434) – (2,271) 

Other operating expenses  (240) (487) – (727) (17) (40) – (57) 

Other expenses (24,943) (2,044) 410 (26,577) (8,529) (1,035) 446 (9,118) 
 

Total claims and expenses (44,558) (1,985) 410 (46,133) (13,564) (1,035) 446 (14,153) 

         Income before tax 4,664 (410) – 4,254 2,337 (913) – 1,424 

Income tax expense (775) 109 – (666) (504) 199 – (305) 

Net Income 3,889 (301) – 3,588 1,833 (714) – 1,119 
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35. Additional Financial Information (continued) 
 
Consolidation schedule for the statement of comprehensive income: 

 
2015 Five months ended 31 December 2014 

 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
transactions Total 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
transactions Total 

Net Income for the year 3,889 (301) – 3,588 1,833 (714) – 1,119 
  

        Other comprehensive income 
        Net other comprehensive income to 

be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods – – – – – – – – 

  

        Other comprehensive income not to be 
reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods (net of tax):  

        - Revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 273 – – 273 – – – – 

Net other comprehensive income 
not to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods 273 – – 273 – – – – 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year, net of tax 273 – – 273 – – – – 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year, net of tax 4,162 (301) – 3,861 1,833 (714) – 1,119 
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35. Additional Financial Information (continued) 
 

Consolidation schedule for the statement of cash flows: 

 
2015 Five months ended 31 December 2014 

 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
transactions Total 

Parent 
Company Subsidiaries 

Intercompany 
transactions Total 

Cash flows from operating activities 
        Insurance premium received 58,747 365 (11) 59,101 21,354 – – 21,354 

Reinsurance premium paid (13,724) – 441 (13,283) (2,532) – – (2,532) 
Insurance benefits and claims paid (21,551) (155) 4 (21,702) (6,912) – – (6,912) 
Reinsurance claims received 3,856 445 (445) 3,856 1,722 – – 1,722 
Acquisition costs paid (4,550) – – (4,550) (1,623) – – (1,623) 
Salaries and benefits paid  (7,729) (132) – (7,861) (2,172) (14) – (2,186) 
Interest received 1,196 143 (1) 1,338 173 – (40) 133 
Interest paid (113) (1) 1 (113) (156) (40) 40 (156) 
Operating taxes paid (78) (54) – (132) (55) (9) – (64) 
Other operating income received 1,096 546 (82) 1,560 637 243 (35) 845 

Other operating expenses paid (3,815) (534) 93 (4,256) (1,411) (331) 35 (1,707) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
before income tax 13,335 623 – 13,958 9,025 (151) 0 8,874 

Income tax paid (1,080) (465) – (1,545) – – – – 

Net cash flows from operating activities 12,255 158 – 12,413 9,025 (151) 0 8,874 

         Cash flows from (used in) investing 
activities 

        Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash 
acquired (4,150) 181 76 (3,893) – – – – 

Additional contribution in capital of 
subsidiaries (230) – 230 – – – – – 

Purchase of premises and equipment (264) (71) – (335) (152) (459) – (611) 
Purchase of intangible assets (575) (3) – (578) (2) – – (2) 
Loan Issued (3,494) (3,034) 2,464 (4,064) (4,789) (24) 579 (4,234) 
Proceeds from loan issued 5,214 800 (897) 5,117 1,000 – – 1,000 
Forward Agreement (7,165) – – (7,165) – – – – 
Placement of bank deposits (1,859) 1,905 – 46 (4,228) – – (4,228) 

Purchase of investments (2,399) – – (2,399) – – – – 

Net cash flows from used in investing 
activities (14,922) (222) 1,873 (13,271) (8,171) (483) 579 (8,075) 

         Cash flows from financing activities 
        Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 4,150 306 (306) 4,150 – – – – 

Proceeds from borrowings 4,000 464 (2,464) 2,000 1,000 579 (579) 1,000 

Repayment of borrowings (5,946) (133) 897 (5,182) (1,895) – – (1,895) 

Net cash flows from financing activities 2,204 637 (1,873) 968 (895) 579 (579) (895) 

         Effect of exchange rates changes on cash 
and cash equivalents (67) 4 – (63) 11 (3) – 8 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents (530) 577 – 47 (30) (58) – (88) 

Cash and cash equivalents, 1 January /  
1 August 2,652 36 – 2,688 2,682 94 – 2,776 

Cash and cash equivalents, 31 December 2,122 613 – 2,735 2,652 36 – 2,688 
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35. Additional Financial Information (continued) 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December comprise: 

 
2015 

 

Parent 
Company 

 
Subsidiaries 

 Intercompany 
balances 

 
Total 

Cash on hand 12  8  –  20 
Current accounts 2,110  605  –  2,715 

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,122  613  –  2,735 

 

 
2014 

 

Parent 
Company 

 
Subsidiaries 

 Intercompany 
balances 

 
Total 

Cash on hand 30  –  –  30 
Current accounts 2,622  36  –  2,658 

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,652  36  –  2,688 

 
Bank Deposits 
 
Bank deposits as of 31 December comprise: 

 

 
2015 

 

Parent 
Company 

 
Subsidiaries 

 Intercompany 
balances 

 
Total 

- JSC Bank of Georgia 6,925  2,419  –  9,344 
- JSC Kor Standart Bank 2,697  671  –  3,368 
- JSC TBC Bank 3,161  –  –  3,161 
- JSC Bank Republic 1,125  –  –  1,125 
- JSC Liberty Bank 666  –  –  666 
- JSC Finca Bank 319  –  –  319 
- JSC PrivatBank –  –  –  – 
- JSC BTA Bank –  –  –  – 
- JSC Basis Bank –  –  –  – 
- JSC Bank Constanta –  –  –  – 

Total bank deposits 14,893  3,090  –  17,983 

 

 
2014 

 

Parent 
Company 

 
Subsidiaries 

 Intercompany 
balances  

 
Total 

- JSC Bank of Georgia 2,563  –  –  2,563 
- JSC Kor Standart Bank 2,149  –  –  2,149 
- JSC TBC Bank 2,922  –  –  2,922 
- JSC Bank Republic –  –  –  – 
- JSC Liberty Bank 575  –  –  575 
- JSC Finca Bank –  –  –  – 
- JSC PrivatBank 1,503  –  –  1,503 
- JSC BTA Bank 1,064  –  –  1,064 
- JSC Basis Bank 1,020  –  –  1,020 
- JSC Bank Constanta 859  –  –  859 

Total bank deposits 12,655  –  –  12,655 
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35. Additional Financial Information (continued) 
 
Property and Equipment  
 
The movements in property and equipment in 2015 were as follows: 

 

 Parent Company 
Land and 
Buildings   

Furniture 
and 

fixtures   

Compu-
ters and 

equipment   
Motor 

vehicles   

Leasehold 
improve-

ments   Total 

Cost 
           31 December 2014 2,461 

 
613 

 
874 

 
209 

 
149 

 
4,306 

Additions 4 
 

30 
 

135 
 

88 
 

14 
 

271 
Disposals – 

 
(2) 

 
(12) 

 
(11) 

 
– 

 
(25) 

Revaluation* 111 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

111 

31 December 2015 2,576 
 

641 
 

997 
 

286 
 

163 
 

4,663 

            Accumulated 
depreciation 

           31 December 2014 185 
 

313 
 

555 
 

113 
 

3 
 

1,169 
Depreciation charge 25 

 
92 

 
146 

 
37 

 
5 

 
305 

Revaluation* (210) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(210) 
Disposals – 

 
– 

 
(3) 

 
(8) 

 
– 

 
(11) 

31 December 2015 – 
 

405 
 

698 
 

142 
 

8 
 

1,253 

            Net book value: 
           

31 December 2014 2,276 
 

300 
 

319 
 

96 
 

146 
 

3,137 

31 December 2015 2,576 
 

236 
 

299 
 

144 
 

155 
 

3,410 

 
* Income tax benefit relating to revaluation of Office Buildings through other comprehensive income comprises GEL 48. 

 

 Subsidiaries 
Land and 
Buildings   

Furniture 
and 

fixtures   

Compu-
ters and 

equipment   
Motor 

vehicles   

Leasehold 
improve-

ments   Total 

Cost 
           31 December 2014 5,622 

 
155 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
5,777 

Acquisition through 
business combinations 
(note 5) – 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
2 

 
2 

Additions 18 
 

21 
 

130 
 

– 
 

– 
 

169 
Disposals – 

 
(90) 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
(90) 

Revaluation (695) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(695) 

31 December 2015 4,945 
 

86 
 

130 
 

– 
 

2 
 

5,163 

            Accumulated 
depreciation 

           31 December 2014 196 
 

6 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

202 
Depreciation charge 124 

 
4 

 
15 

 
– 

 
– 

 
143 

Revaluation (320) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(320) 
Disposals – 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

31 December 2015 – 
 

10 
 

15 
 

– 
 

– 
 

25 

            Net book value: 
           

31 December 2014 5,426 
 

149 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

5,575 

31 December 2015 4,945 
 

76 
 

115 
 

– 
 

2 
 

5,138 
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35. Additional Financial Information (continued) 
 
Property and Equipment (continued) 
 
The movements in property and equipment in 2014 were as follows: 

 

Parent Company 
Land and 
Buildings   

Furniture 
and 

fixtures   

Compu-
ters and 

equipment   
Motor 

vehicles   

Leasehold 
improve-

ments   Total 

Cost 
           1 August 2014 2,461 

 
571 

 
880 

 
147 

 
138 

 
4,197 

Additions – 
 

46 
 

59 
 

63 
 

11 
 

179 
Disposals – 

 
(4) 

 
(65) 

 
(1) 

 
– 

 
(70) 

31 December 2014 2,461 
 

613 
 

874 
 

209 
 

149 
 

4,306 

  

           Accumulated 
depreciation 

           1 August 2014 175 
 

273 
 

565 
 

97 
 

2 
 

1,112 
Depreciation charge 10 

 
43 

 
55 

 
16 

 
1 

 
125 

Disposals – 
 

(3) 
 

(65) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(68) 

31 December 2014 185 
 

313 
 

555 
 

113 
 

3 
 

1,169 

  

           Net book value: 
           

1 August 2014 2,286 
 

298 
 

315 
 

50 
 

136 
 

3,085 

31 December 2014 2,276 
 

300 
 

319 
 

96 
 

146 
 

3,137 

 

Subsidiaries 
Land and 
Buildings   

Furniture 
and 

fixtures   

Compu-
ters 
and 

equip-
ment   

Motor 
vehicles   

Leasehold 
improve-

ments   

Assets 
under 

construc-
tion   Total 

 
Cost 

             1 August 2014 1,974 
 

2 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

3,284 
 

5,260 
Additions – 

 
174 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
449 

 
623 

Disposals – 
 

(21) 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(85) 
 

(106) 

Transfers* 3,648 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

(3,648) 
 

– 

31 December 
2014 5,622 

 
155 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
5,777 

  

             Accumulated 
depreciation 

             1 August 2014 150 
 

1 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

151 
Depreciation 

charge 46 
 

5 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

– 
 

51 
Disposals – 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

31 December 
2014 196 

 
6 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
202 

  

             Net book value 
             1 August 2014 1,824 

 
1 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
3,284 

 
5,109 

31 December 
2014 5,426 

 
149 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
– 

 
5,575 

 
* In September 2014 construction of hotel in Batumi, Adjara region, was finalised and the asset under construction of 

Premium Residence, LLC was transferred to Land and Buildings.  
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